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RSU
RSU
2018 2017 2016 13 17
2.16
IFRS
IFRS 2018 2015

2016
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2014 2018
2018 2014
10,939 8,249 7.3%
2,486 1,751 9.2%
1.10 0.77* 9.3%
1.10 0.77* 9.3%
204,107 160,405 6.2%
2017 12 31 2011 2021
IRS APA APA IRS
APA 225
2018 283 2017
321 2016 325 2018 98.5% 2017
97.3% 2016 97.1%
2018 2017
100.0% 100.0%
64.0% 63.1%
36. 0% 36.9%
5.0% 5. 2%
6.7% 6.9%
11.7% 12.2%
24.3% 24.7%
4.5k 4.5%
(0.1)% -
28.7% 29.1%
6.0% 8. 2%
22.7% 21.0%
2018 30
IFRS
OEM

2019
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OEM
2018 2017
90
2018
2018 2,791 25.5%
2017 2018
2018 2017
10,939 10,208 731 7.2%
2018 2017
2018 2017
FS 26.4% 27.1%
MFG 10.9% 11.0%
ECS 23.8% 22.5%
RCL 15.8% 16.4%
HILIFE 13.1% 12.3%
7.2% 7.5%
2.8% 3.2%
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2.3% 8.3% 4.0%
IFRS
2018 10,939 2018
10,789 2017 7.2%
5.8%

72/340



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)

oOoOooodn
2018 2017
2.20.1
%
2018 2017
FS 27.9% 28.1%
MFG 23.6% 24..6%
ECS 27.1% 28.7%
RCL 29.3% 29.0%
HILIFE 27.7% 27.4%
24.2% 24.9%
19.3% 13.2%
MGF
ECS
2018 2017 IT
2018 2017
55.4% 56.8%
44.6% 43.2%
2018 2017 IT
2018 2017
29.3% 29.8%
70.7% 70.2%
2018 2017 97.1% 96.9%
2018 2017
2.9% 3.1%
2018 2017
2018 2017
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50.5% 48.0%
49.5% 52.0%
IT
IT
IT

2018 2017
81.2% 77.6%
84.6% 81.7%

2018
2.9% 3.6%
2018 2017

2018 2017
60.4% 61.9%
23.7% 22.5%
12.7% 12.4%
3.2% 3.2%

2018 2017
2.20.2
%

2018 2017
25.5% 25.9%
26.4% 27.0%
31.7% 32.2%
40.2% 33.8%

2018 IT 6.0% 2018

IT 4.1% 6.9% 2018 IT

2018

4.1%
1.5%
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2018 2017
2018 2017
7,001 6,446 555 8.6%
64.0% 63.1%
2018 2017
5,379 4,987 392
289 254 35
225 246 1)
666 571 95
136 118 18
152 120 32
50 46 4
8 4 4
35 39 0
22 12 10
46 46 -
* ) 3 (10)
7,001 6,446 555
2018 2017
2018 2017 12
2018 2017
2018 2017
3,938 3,762 176
36.0% 36.9%

2018
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2018 2017
552 535 17 3.2%
5.0% 5.2k
2018 2017
425 405 20
48 52 Q)
47 51 Q)
12 10 2
10 7 3
3 3 -
7 7 -
552 535 17

2018
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2018 2017
2018 2017
727 707 20 2.8%
6.7% 6.9%
2018 2017

230 220 10

144 103 1
127 145 (18)
32 34 0
38 40 0

37 35 2

25 22 3

20 17 3

9 8 1

11 21 (10)

1 2 )

CSR 24 34 (10)

29 26 3

727 707 20

2018 2017 0.2%
2018 2017
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2018 2017
2018 2017
2,659 2,520 139
24.3% 24 7%
2018 2017
0.9%
2018 2017
2018 2017
495 459 36 7.8%
2018 406 36
41
2018 Kallidus Skava
Skava
2019 316
50
18 2018 31
2018 31 230
130
2018 31
2018 31 2018 31
2017 402 89
54
BPM BPO EdgeVerve Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd.

FEMA
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2018 2017
2018 2017

67.7% 69.6%

5.3% 5.8%

11.3% 9.6%

7.8% 7.3%

7.9% 7.7%
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2018 2017
2018 2017
64.46 67.11 3.9%
85.99 87.41 1.6%
75.84 73.40 (3.3)%
49.96 50.46 1.0%
2018 2017
@

64.85 66.26

80.90 95.47

69.29 75.40

49.58 50.98

V)

65.18 64.85

92.28 80.90

80.81 69.29

50.05 49.58

(b)/
@

(0.5)% 2.1%

(14.1)% 15.3%

(16.6)% 8. 1%

(0.9)% 2. 7%
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2018 2017
2018 ( ) 2017 ( )
1.33 1.30 2.3)%
1.18 1.09 (8.3)%
0.78 0.75 (4.0)%
2018 ( ) 2017 ( )
@
1.25 1.44
1.07 1.14
0.76 0.77
V)
1.42 1.25
1.24 1.07
0.77 0.76
(b)/
@
(13.6)% 13.2%
(15.9)% 6. 1%
(1.3)% 1.3%
2018 2017
0.50%
(©)
2018 2017
89 36
54
2.20.2
STP
2005
SEZ
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50%
50%
2018 2017
321 295
2018 0.14
2017 0.13
2.17
2018 2017
2018 2017
657 @77 (21.2)%
20.9% 28.0%
2018 20.9% 2017 28.0%
2018 28.0%  20.9% IRS APA
2017 12 31 2011 2021
APA APA IRS
APA APA
225 253
21 APA 2017
12 31
2018 2018 31 0.09
APA APA
138
2018 2017 45 23
2018 45
2017 53
30
2.17
2017 12 22 (H.R.1)
2018 3% 21% 2018
24
2018 31 3,041 467
2018 31
6,540 1,003
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2017 31 6,378 984
4,682 722
2018 BPM 130
2018 27
2.17
2018 2017
2018 2017
2,486 2,140 346
22.7% 21.0%
2018 21.2%
7.8%
2017 12 31 2011 2021
IRS APA APA IRS
APA
APA 225
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2017 2018
2018 31 2017 31
2018 2017
31 31

184 172

187 184

3 12

7 12

©) -

2.12.1
®
1993 4.4 1994
7.7
1999 11 ADS 70.4
2018 31 2017 31
5,243
6,121 2018 31 3,041
982 2017 31 3,489
1,538
IT
2018 31 2017 31

82

88
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2018 2017
2018 2017
2,257 2,099
482 (2,547)
(3,197) (1,032)
2017 2,099
2018 2,257
2018
12 2018 2017 31 18.4%
18.6% 2018 2017 31 12
67 68
2018 2012 2014 2015
46 56 46 2007 2008
2009 2018 36 63
82 41
2017 2012 2013 36
10
2.17
APA APA
233 138
2018 31 2019 20
2.12.1
2018 2017
2018 2017
310 411
2018 2017 10,721 9,888
2018 2017 11,474 7,760
2018
2018 2017
14 2018
2018 2017 20 25
2017
100%
2015 31 DWA LLC 20%
2018 2017 11
2017 11 DWA LLC
2015
Kallidus Inc. Kallidus 100%
Kallidus Skava Systems Private Limited 100%
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91 20
2018 Kallidus Skava
Skava
2019 316
50
18 2018 31
90 2018 31
2015 11 16
100% 33
32
2018
500
2018 31 53 12
2018 31 31 DWA 11
2018 22 WongDoody
100%
38 28
WongDoody
% 10% 2018 2017 31 43
47
2018 31
31 12
2019 37
2020 6
43
2018 2,042
1,156 2017
1,032 2018 31
1,164
2017 19
13,000
1.

2018 13
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2018 2017
2018 2017
13.00 0.20 11.00 0.17
2050 0.21¥ 14.75 0.23
1000 0.15® - .
43.50 0.66 25.75 0.40
69.8%) 49.6%?
(1) 2018 13 2018 23
@ 50%
(©)] 70%
IFRS
DDT
4 65.18
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*
2017 630 -
2018 526 -
2016 - 579
2017 - 453
2018 13
ADS ADS
ADS 25
ADS
2015 RSU ESOP
2018 31 223 2017 31 177 2018
31 184 2017 31 132
39 2017 45
2018 31
O]
@
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67.7% 69.6%
5.3% 5.8% 11.3% 9.6% 7.8% 7.3%
2018 2017
31 31

- 130

- 95

- 40

60 -

100 40

20 -

5 35

20 -

91 114

550 -

16 -

40 -

5 5

25 -

50 50

21 10

623 526

51 75

20 -

- 13

45 25

5 -

320 195

25 30
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IFRS 15
2014 1ASB

1AS

IFRS 15 2018

IFRS 15
2018 31 2017

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

2016 13 1ASB

IAS 17

IFRS 16 2019

IFRIC 22

2016 12
IFRIC 22

2018

12

1ASB

IFRS 15

31

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS

IFRIC 22
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2017 1ASB IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23 IAS 12
IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23
1AS
IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23 2019
IFRIC 23
IAS 19
2018 1ASB IAS 19
2019
(©)

IFRS
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™
(®)
2018 31
417 70 123 90 134
505 342 155 8 -
304 27 56 64 157
10
2018 31 12

478
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2018 2017 2016 310 411
413

4.6 5.04

10,000 924,000

2018 31 82
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( (
) )
3,847,646 23,021 3,519,233
- - - 14,694,196
1.375,898 3,971 1,999,455
502,726 3,530 2,218,040
Goudakasipur Arisol
1,135,580 6,131 1,316,388
508,300 3,514 578,043
Sholinganallur
3,637,108 20,323 5,617,084
2,018,050 10,142 2,194,997
3,549,265 18,399 19,618,277
Pocharam
Pajeeru 1,743,636 5,578 15,156,794
Kairangala
11,671,426 15,849 12,652,487
- - - 2,047,346
Hinjewadi 589,647 3,771 1,089,004
Hinjewadi 6,123,575 33,190 4,987,787
625,144 5,488 - -
Attipura 1,989,655 7,068 2,178,009
Pallipuram - - - 2,171,039
M 778,245 7,071 1,819,527 -
- - - 6,452,568
- Dahegaon Villege - - - 6,193,211
- Tikgarita Badshah - - - 5,666,307
Badangarda
- Gokul - - - 1,875,265
- A-1 A-6 85 - - - 1,201,346
SAS Nagar IT 1-3 83A - - - 2,178,009
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- - - 2,178,009
1 814,549 4,765 657,403
@
2018 31 223
300 35,378
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€H)
2018 31
2,400,000,000 2.184,114,257 D 215,885,743
2018 31
2.184,114,257
ADS
(1)2016 31 2015
2015
24,038,883 2016 31 2011
11,223,576 17,038,883  RSU
7,000,000
2015
2018 2017 31 2015 10,801,956
11,289,514 100,000

O]
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€))
2018 31
2013 31 574,236,166 2,871,180,830
2014 31 574,236,166 2,871,180,830
2014 12 574,236,166 2,871,180,830 )
2015 31 1,148,472,332 5,742,361,660
2015 30 1,148,472,332 5,742,361,660 0
2016 31 2,296,944,664 11,484,723,320
2017 31 2,296,944,664 11,484,723,320
2017 12 27 -113,043,478 -565,217,390 3)
2017 213,071 1,065,355 4)
2018 31
2018 31 2,184,114,257 10,920,571,285
(17,255 )
@ 2014 12 31
574,236,166
0) 2015 30
1,148,472,332 2.13
(3)2018 4.92% 113,043,478 1,150
2.13
(4)2017 2018 31
2.16
®
2018 31
% %
748,685 99.42 498,508,049 22.82
4,340 0.58 1,685,606,208 77.18
753,025 100.00 2,184,114,257 100.00
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2018 31 10
(%)
149,514,017 6.85
HDFC BKC 60,733,054 2.78
C-54 C-55
FIFC 11
N.A.
47,678,500 2.18
13
855
ICICI 40,313,403 1.85
HDFC
SBI 30,749,319 1.41
SV
SBI
SG
PL
30,406,446 1.39
35
21
575
29,735,160 1.36
J.P.
N.A.
ICICI 28,200,618 1.29
1142 DB
27,620,153 1.26
1142 DB
26,737,104 1.22
J.P.
N.A.
471,687,774 21.59
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40%
70%

13
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IFRS
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2008
2018 2017 2016
2018 2017 2016
®) 13.00 11.00 10.00
) 20.50 14.75 14.25@
®) 10.00
/ ADS
@)
®) 0.20 0.17 0.15
) 0.31 0.23 0.22D
®) 0.15
@
(2) 2015 17
©)
*

(5) 2018 13 2018 23
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BSE) NSE (
ADS INFY
ADS ADS 1999 11
2012 12 11 ADS
2012 12 12 INFY 2013 20
ADS
ADS
2018 ADS ADS
ADS
ADS 2018
ADS ADS
ADS
1999 10 2017 28
ADS
2018 30 2,184,127,091 372,788,693ADS  1ADS
ADR 66,439 2018 30
721,577
ADS
ADS
(€H)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
31 31 31 31 31

959 1,168 1,235 1,278 1,220
1,515 1,845 1,951 2,019 1,928

553 724 933 900 862
874 1,144 1,474 1,422 1,362
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
31 31 31 31 31
958 1,168 1,237 1,279 1,221
1,514 1,845 1,954 2,021 1,929
553 720 933 901 860
874 1,138 1,474 1,424 1,359
ADS
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
31 31 31 31 31
15.76 18.64 19.46 20.47 18.71
1,775 2,099 2,191 2,305 2,107
9.81 12.52 15.26 13.42 13.88
1,105 1,410 1,718 1,511 1,563
@
2017 10 2017 11 2017 12 2018 2018 2018
957 1,019 1,046 1,220 1,189 1,196
1,512 1,610 1,653 1,928 1,879 1,890
897 918 956 1,006 1,092 1,129
1,417 1,450 1,510 1,589 1,725 1,784
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2017 10 2017 11 2017 12 2018 2018 2018
958 1,019 1,049 1,221 1,190 1,197
1,514 1,610 1,657 1,929 1,880 1,891
897 917 957 1,006 1,090 1,126
1,417 1,449 1,512 1,589 1,722 1,779
ADS
2017 10 2017 11 2017 12 2018 2018 2018
15.09 15.71 16.37 18.71 18.09 18.54
1,699 1,769 1,843 2,107 2,037 2,088
14.16 1457 14.98 16.02 16.88 17.37
1,595 1,641 1,687 1,804 1,901 1,956
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2018 21 10 20
2018 21 @
2018
21
100,461,168
1955 2017 24 W
2002 2007
2009
2009
(UIDAI)
2017
EkStep
2003 2003
2005
2006
2006
2006 2009
100 2010
100
2017
CNBC-TV18
2017
2017 22

Imagining India

Rebooting India:

Realizing a Billion Aspirations
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S.
1964 CEO MD 2018
IT 30
25
Sogeti
U.B. 1,073,696
1961 12 12 2014 10
CSR
30 1986
Cll1
NASSCOM
WBCSD
1,600

2014

1953 23
Biocon Limited
CSR
TIME
100
2012
CEO 10
Biocon
1973

1975
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1963 11

CRISIL

CSR

CNBC TV18 2012

2014

2013-14

SEBI

NASSCOM
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2016 5,794 (&)
CSR
1962 13
28

1990

NYSE IFN 15
NYSE GRR

CIBC
JP
CFA
CFA
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D.N. 2016 10 2,311,224
1956 26 ®

Edgeverve BPM
SOLCEN

50

. 2017
1953 16
1975
Plc
HUL
1990 -1993
1996 -1999
1999
2008 HUL 2008
2009
CNBC TV18
CFO 2006
2008 TVS
TVS Shriram
MMS
AMP SBI

GSK
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2018
*
1957 11 B
BP
BP IT
Conoco Refining Marketing
ConocoPhillips
Supply and Trading
2008
BP
2013
A Child"s Hope—
1997
2004
/
2015
CI0
IT
1-CI0
M.D. ® . 33,836
1962 11
96 17
M&A
2008 2013
1991 1999 ICICI
2017 2018
Institutional Investors IT
CFO CFO
2018
100

PGDM
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1971 23
BPM BPM
McCamish LLC
BPM
20
CRM
YPO
MIT
NASSCOM IT
1974 BFSI
19
2018
YGL
2000
2007

ABN ANZ
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6,024
1963 21
30
32,164 ©®
1964 10
IT
25
SABANA
SABANA
Partham
2006 Minority Bar Coalition Unity 2010
SABA Outstanding Mentorship
2010 NASABA 2013 NASABA
2017
M. 59,678,006
3,040ADS
2,754ADS
100,000 19,034
13
18 M.D.
2018 11 16
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) 2018
" @) -
(6) 153,672
@ 219,015
149,399
203,685
D.N. 145,014
D. ® 107,044
R. O 129,377
S ©) 137,308
W. ) 91,527
(1) 2017 24 2017 10
(2) 2017 13 2017 24 2018 11
(3) 2017 14 2017 10
(4) 2017 24
(5) 2017 24
(6) 2018 13
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(8) 2018
RSU ESOP
RSU
ESOP
@ 218,276 382,490 14,5542,000,000 113,024 -
U.B. ® 655,977 592,208 28,956 -® -® -®
® 715,806 205,572 28,579 - - -
M.D. 567,434 524,066 36,6561,000,000  66,850® -
S- 625,000 513,372 29,9071,000,000® 66,850 -
681,855 522,977  156,2741,000,000 66,850 -
™ 223,944 (19,726) 3,199 - - -
K ® 474,479 431,982 316,616 - - -
313,408 270,506 23,726 184,541  12,400® -
(QUC 416,345 307,975 26,428 950,000 58,150 44,450
11 20,691 1,677 1,868 . -
(1) 2018 2018 2023
2018 20
() 2018 20 s. 2015
a) 3.25
0.50 RSU
b) 9.75
1.50 RSU
) 2021 31
13 2 RSU
2018 27 2018 28,256  RSU
84,768  RSU 2018 27
2018 RSU
108,600 2021 31
(3) 2017 18 2017 10
2018
2018 20
0 RSU ESOP 2017 2017 27,250  RSU
43,000  ESOP
() 2017 18 2017 24
RSU ESOP
() 2018 2015 RSU
2018 27 RSU ESOP
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) 2017 14
(8) 2018 31
(9) 2017

19,450  RSU 44,450

60:40
(10 25,000
(11) 2017 14
2015

2.16

ESOP
2017

2017

38,700

2018
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2015 2018 2017
2018 2017
RSU
113,024 -
U.B.
27,250 -
@ 270,224 120,700
271,100 246,250
681,598 366, 950
ESOP
U.B.
43,000 -
@ 330,525 .
44,450 502,550
417,975 502,550
1,099,573 869,500
I6)) RSU ESOP
1. 2015
2.16
2018 RSU
108,600 2021 31
2015 RSU ESOP
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2018 2017 RSU ESOP
RSU ESOP
70,772 -
3,012 -
M.D. 7,662 -
S. 13,087 28,187
K 11,250 24,225
13,087 -
2017 2016 2015 34,062
10,824 RSU 2017 2016
2018 31 RSU ESOP
2018 31
RSU ESOP
113,024 -
U.B. 27,250 43,000
58,150 44,450
21,438 19,000
M.D. 89,838 48,400
S. 106,113 84,563
106,113 112,750
521,926 352,163
RSU
2015 2018

13
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67%
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33%
/ 60 /
60 70

60

2017 24 M.

2018 S.

2018 13
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2.1 3,041 3,489
2.2 982 1,538
2,016 1,900
654 562
2.4 662 749
2.3 2 44
7,357 8,282
2.9 316 -
7,673 8,282
2.7 1,863 1,807
2.8 339 563
2.8 38 120
2.19 - 11
2.2 883 984
2.17 196 83
2.17 931 881
2.4 332 123
4,582 4,572
12,255 12,854
107 57
2.3 6 -
2.17 314 599
6 5
352 274
218 209
2.6 75 63
2.5 1,036 954
2,114 2,161
2.9 50 -

2,164 2,161
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2.17 82 32
7 -
2.5 42 24
2,295 2,217
0.16 2018
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2,173,312,301
2,285,655, 150
10,801,956 11,289,514
190 199
247 587
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2.1 342,447 392,896
2.2 110,583 173,194
227,022 213,959
73,647 63,287
2.4 74,548 84,345
2.3 225 4,955
828,472 932,636
2.9 35,585 -
864,057 932,636
2.7 209,792 203,486
2.8 38,175 63,399
2.8 4,279 13,513
2.19 - 1,239
2.2 99,435 110,808
2.17 22,072 9,347
2.17 104,840 99,209
2.4 37,387 13,851
515,979 514,853
1,380,036 1,447,489
12,049 6,419
2.3 676 -
2.17 35,360 67,453
676 563
39,639 30,855
24,549 23,535
2.6 8,446 7,094
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238,058 243,350
2.9 5,631 -
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2,400,000, 000
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1,304,812 1,372,716
- 676
27,477 -
1,013 -
(260,917) (264,070)
1,121,59 1,197,833
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1,380,036 1,447,489
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1,279 1,242 1,176
2,659 2,520 2,375
2.9
2.14 495 459 476
2.19 (11) ) -
3,143 2,974 2,851
2.17 657 834 799
2,486 2,140 2,052
2.12
2.17 9 @) [©))
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2.3 - 5) -
2.2
2.17 1 ) -
10 13) @
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2.17 - @) 6
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2.10 1,231,841 1,149,523 1,069,908
788,383 725,884 670,030
443,458 423,639 399,878
62,161 60,246 58,782
81,867 79,615 73,647
144,028 139,862 132,429
299,430 283,777 267,449
2.9
2.14 55,742 51,688 53,602
2.19 (1,239) (563) -
353,933 334,902 321,051
2.17 73,985 93,917 89,975
279,948 240,985 231,076
2.12
2.17 1,013 (788) (225)
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2.3 - (563) -
2.2
2.17 113 (113) -
1,126 (1,464) (225)
2.2
2.17 - (225) 676
2.3
2.17 (676) 676 -
2,027 22,297 (49,098)
1,351 22,747 (48,422)
2,477 21,283 (48,648)
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2.13 - - - 89 (89) - . - -
2.16 - - 1 - . - ; - 1
2.2 2.17 * - - - , ; i _ 6 6
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) - - - (1,059) - - - - (1,059)
- - - 2,052 - - - - 2,052
- - - - - - - (436) (436)
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2017 31
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2.3 - - - - - - - ®) ®
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2.16 - - 17 - - - - - 17
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2.2 2.17 * - - - - - - (@) ()
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2.17 - - - - - - ©) ©)
(
) - - - (1,033) - - - (1,033)
- - - 2,140 - - - 2,140
- - - - - - 198 198
2017 31 2,285,655,150 199 587 12,190 - 6 (2,345) 10,637
2018 31
2.16 700,629 - 1 - - - - 1
- - - (340) 340 - - -
- - - 96 (96) - - -
2.16 - - 12 - - - - 12
2.13 (113,043,478) ©) (346) (1,680) - - - (2,035)
2.13 - - @) - - - - O
2.13
- - - ©) - - - -
* 2.3 2.17
- - - - - ®) - ®)
* 2.2
2.17 - - - - - - 1 1
2.2 2.17 * - - - - - - - -
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2.17 - - - - - - 9 9
(
) - - - (1,156) - - - (1,156)
- - - 2,486 - - - 2,486
- - - - - - 18 18
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(€))
2.13 - - (10,135) - - - - - (10,135)
2.13 - - - (10,022) 10,022 - - - -
2.13 - - - 10,022 (10,022) - - - -
2.16 - - 113 - - - - - 113
2.2 2.17 * - - - - - - - 676 676
212
2.17 - - - - - - - (225) (225)
) - - - (119,254) - - - - (119,254)
- - - 231,076 - - - - 231,076
) ) ) _ i - - (49,098)  (49,098)
2016 3 2,285,621,088 22,400 64,188 1,248,057 - - - (284,678) 1,049,976
2017 3
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2.3 - - - - - - - (563) (563)
2.16 34,062 - - - - - - - -
2.13 - - - (@5,91) 15,991 - - - -
2.13 - - - 15,991  (15,991) - - - -
2.16 - - 1,914 - - - - - 1,914
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2.2 2.17 * - - - - - - - (225) (225)
* 2,12
2.17 - - - - - - - (788) (788)
) - - - (116,326) - - - - (116,326)
- - - 240,985 - - - - 240,985
- - - - - - - 22,297 22,297
2017 31 2,285,655,150 22,409 66,102 1,372,716 - - 676 (264,070) 1,197,833
2018 31
2.16 700,629 - 113 - - - - - 113
- - - (38,287) 38,287 - - - -
- - - 10,811  (10,811) - - - -
2.16 - - 1,351 - - - - - 1,351
2.13 (113,043,478)  (1,013)  (38,963) (189,185) - - - - (229,161)
2.13 - - (788) - - - - - (788)
2.13
- - - (@,013) - 1,013 - - -
* 2.3 2.17
- - - - - - (676) - (676)
* 2.2
2.17 - - - - - - - 113 113
2.2 2.17 * - - - - - - - - -
* 2,12
2.17 - - - - - - - 1,013 1,013
) - - - (130,177) - - - - (130,177)
- - - 279,948 - - - - 279,948
- - - - - - - 2,027 2,027
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2,486 2,140 2,052
2.7 2.8 289 254 222
(129) (51) @n
2.17 657 834 799
3 6 10
2.9 - - 23
5 20 Q)
2.9 18 - -
11 5 -
13 17 1
(20) 7 25
237) (260) (252)
(58) (70) (220)
51 ®) 37
1 1 -
104 66 43
122 24) 48
3,316 2,942 2,754
2.17 (1,059) (843) (892)
2,257 2,099 1,862

(310) (411) (413)
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(20) (25) 2)

67 32 26

(16) (638) (46)

18 1 -

5 - -

® (10) 12)

® O] ©))

(1,032) (1,167) -

1,503 - -

(45) - -

(9,628) (8,083) (3,676)

9,953 7,759 3,800

482 (2,547) @14)

(2,042) - -

1 - -

(1,156) (1,032) (1,059)

(3.197) (1,032) (1,059)

(458) (1,480) 329

18 34 (253)

2.1 3,489 4,935 4,859
2.1 3,049 3,489 4,935
2.1 82 88 74
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279,948 240,985 231,076

2.7 2.8 32,544 28,603 24,999
(14,527) (5,743) (3,040)

2.17 73,985 93,917 89,975
338 676 1,126

2.9 - - 2,590
563 2,252 (788)

2.9 2,027 - -
1,239 563 -

1,464 1,914 113

(2,252) 788 2,815

(26,689)  (29,279)  (28,378)
(6,531) (7,883)  (24,774)

5,743 (338) 4,167

113 113 -

11,711 7,432 4,842

13,738 (2,703) 5,405

373,415 331,299 310,128

2.17 (119,254)  (94,930)  (100,448)

254,161 236,368 209,680

(34,909)  (46,283)  (46,508)
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7,545 3,604 2,928

(1,802)  (71,845) (5,180)

2,027 113 -

563 - -

(450) (1,126) (1,351)

(450) (450) (338)

(116,214)  (131,416) -

169,253 - -

(5,067) - -

(1,084,209)  (910,227)  (413,954)
1,120,807 873,741 427,918

54,278  (286,818)  (53,377)

(229,950) - -

113 - -

(130,177)  (116,214)  (119,254)

(360,014)  (116,214)  (119,254)

(51,575)  (166,663) 37,049

2,027 3,829  (28,490)

2.1 392,896 555,730 547,172
2.1 343,348 392,896 555,730
2.1 9,234 9,910 8,333
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2014 1ASB IFRS 15

IAS

IFRS 15 2018

IFRS 15
2018 31 2017 31 IFRS 15

IFRS 16

2016 13 IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
12

IFRS 16 IAS 17

IFRS 16 2019 IFRS 15
IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

2016 12 1ASB IFRS IFRIC 22
IFRIC 22

IFRIC 22 2018

2018 IFRIC 22 IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23
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31
2018 2017

ANZ 1 -
2 1
180 159
4 8
WBK S.A. 3 1
6 -
- 2
BNP 14 3
1 1
N.A. 34 3
N.A. 2 5
N.A. 18 10
N.A. 1 2
N.A. - 1
N.A. 1 -
N.A. EEFC 1 -
N.A. 1 -
N.A. 3 2
N.A. 2 2
N.A. 1 -
N.A. 1 -
N.A. 5 2
N.A. 1 12
- 3
4 2
1 1
2 1
1 1
- 5
3 1
16 8
7 2
2 -
4 1
1 1
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EEFC 5 12
EEFC 1 2
- 2
ICICI 8 8
ICICI EEFC 6 1
ICICI EEFC 2 -
HSBC 1 -
ICICI 3 2
8 5
1 1
- 1
26 13
- 1
2 1
- 1
- 3
D.D.
1 -
- 1
- 5

418 318
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- 181
BGZ BNP 22 28
31 127

36 40

35 26

4 -

32 11

HDFC 383 72
HSBC - 77
icicl 568 751
1DBI 38 270
IDFC 230 31
154 29

- 83

69 69

- 77

- 8

1 98

1,603 1,978

HDFC 836 1,085
LIC 184 108
1,020 1,193

3,041 3,489
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2.2
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- - 66 - - 66 66

201 - . . 610 901 920D

- - - - 808 808 808

- - - - 45 45 45

- - - 21 - 21 21

- - 10 - - 10 10

- - 2 - - 2 2

2,016 - - - - 2,016 2,016

654 - - - - 654 654

2.4 ) 456 - - - - 456 443

) ) _ _ 2 2 2

6,458 - 90 21 1,465 8,034 8,060

107 - - - - 107 107

- - 6 - - 6 6

( 25 ) 836 - 8 - - 844 844

943 - 14 - - 957 957
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205 . . 613 908 947
- . - 1,219 1,219 1,219
- . 25 - 25 25
- 5 . - 5 5
- 1 . - 1 1
1,900 - - - 1,900 1,900
562 - - - 562 562
( 24 ) 410 - - - 410 397®
- 36 - 8 a4 44
6,656 406 25 1,840 8,927 8,953
57 - - - 57 57
768 13 - - 781 781
825 13 - - 838 838
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( 2.2 ) 808 - 808 -
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) 45 - 45 -
(
2.2 ) 21 - - 21
( 2.2 ) 10 - - 10
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2 - 2 -
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2018 31 130
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2018 2017 2016
260 352 402
106 28 -
1 4 10
39 18 -

406 402 412
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197 33 23 54 183 490
1,276 269 129 121 120 1,915
356 98 46 24 57 581
49 4 4 2 15 74
(42) (12) an ®) ©)) (85)
(166) (29) an ©) (23) (244)
(88) (13) ) (28) (20) (153)
N (21) 12) ®) (49) (184)
1,485 329 152 154 274 2,394
206 20 6 28 108 368
1,287 192 119 87 108 1,793
376 68 50 19 47 560
65 15 7 6 15 108
(18) ®) @) @ (24) (50)
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- 95

- 40
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100 40

20 -

5 35

20 -

91 114

550 -

16 -

40 -

5 5

25 -

50 50

21 10

623 526

51 75

20 -

- 13

45 25

5 -

320 195

25 30

2018 31 2017 31
89 2016 31
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S. de R.L. de C.V. 100% 100%
AB 100% 100%
100% 100%
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EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve 100% 100%
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Kallidus Inc.(Kallidus) 100% 100%
SpA(2) - -
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(16)
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100%

(19
(20)

2018 2017 2016 31 AG
AG AG

2018 2017 31
AG

2018 31 BPM 130
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2018 31 S.C. S.R.L.
AG

31
2018 2017

DWA  LLC DWA @ . 16%

@ 2015 31 DWA  LLC
20% 15 DWA
2017 31 DWA  LLC 16%
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Finacle

IPS

IPS

218/340



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

219/340
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2018 31

FS

MFG

ECS

RCL
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HILIFE  Hi-Tech

2,891
1,470
613

1,194
641
271

2,599
1,305
589

1,722

828
390

1,438 784 311 10,939
713 416 180 5,553
326 178 71 2,438

808

282

705

504

399 190 60 2,948
289

2.14 2.9

2,659

495

(1)

3,143
657

2,486

289

29
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2017 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,765 1,119 2,300 1,673 1,258 763 330 10,208
1,382 584 1,107 802 623 396 210 5,104
607 259 532 387 291 177 76 2,329
776 276 661 484 344 190 44 2,775
255
2,520

459

Q)
2,974
834
2,140

254
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2016 31

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE  Hi-Tech
2,590 1,047 2,061 1,556 1,231 756 260 9,501
1,248 555 944 742 585 371 156 4,601
606 257 505 381 302 185 65 2,301
736 235 612 433 344 200 39 2,599
224
2,375
476
2,851
799
2,052
222
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2.20.2

2018 31

6,605 2,596 346 1,392 10,939
3,429 1,324 141 659 5,553
1,494 586 66 292 2,438
1,682 686 139 441 2,948
289

2,659

2.14
2.9 495

(11)
3,143
657
2,486
289

29

2017 31

6,320 2,295 325 1,268 10,208
3,222 1,147 149 586 5,104
1,460 529 66 274 2,329
1,638 619 110 408 2,775
255

2,520

459

®
2,974
834
2,140
254
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2016 31

5,957 2,186 246 1,112 9,501
2,936 1,060 109 496 4,601
1,459 534 51 257 2,301
1,562 592 86 359 2,599
224

2,375

476

2,851
799
2,052
222

2.20.3
2018 2017 2016 31 10%

2.21
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Shest as of March 31,

{Dollars in millions except eguity share data)

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other current assets 24 BE2 749

Total current assels T67T3 8,282

Property, plant and equipment

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current income tax liabilities 217 314 599
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Qther current liabilities 2.5 1,036 854

2114 2,161
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 29 0 -
Total current liabilities 2,164 2161
Non=current liabilities
Deferrad income tax liabdities 217 B2 32
Employee benefit obligations T =
Other non-current lisbilities 25 42 24
Total liabilities 2,285 2217
Equity
Share capital = £5/- {50 16) par value 2 400,000,000
{2.400.000,000) authorized equity shares, issted and
outstanding 2,173 312 301 (2 285,655, 150) equity shares
fully paid up, net of 10, 801 956 (11 283 514 treasury shares
each as of March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017), respectively 180 139
Share premsum 247 587
Retained samings 11,587 12,190
Cash flow hedge reserve = &
Qther resan/es 248 e
Capital redemption resarve ] -
QOther components of equity (2.317) [2.345)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the 9.960
company 10,837
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 9,960 10,637
Total liabilities and aquity 12,255 12,854
Commitments and contingent liabifities 26,27 217

and 221

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the consclidated financial statements.
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended March 31,

(Dollars in millions except equity share and per aguity share data)

Note 2018 2017 2016
Revenuss 210 10,939 10,208 4,501
Cost of sales 7.001 B448 5,950
Gross profit 3,938 3,762 3,551
Operating expanses:
Selling and marketing expenses 552 535 522
Administralive expenses T27 To7 654
Total operating expenses 1.279 1,242 1,176
Operating profit 2,659 2,520 2,375
Other income, net 28 and 2.14 485 455 476
Share in associate's profit! (loss), including
impairment 219 (11) (5} -
Profit before Income taxes 3143 2974 2,851
Income tax expense 2147 BT 824 7ag
Net profit 2,486 2,140 2,052
Other comprehensive income
ftems that will natt be reclassified subsequently fo
profit or loss:
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit
liability | aszet, net 212 and 217 5 () {2)
Cumulative impact on reversal of unrealized galn
on gquoled debl securities on adoption of IFRS 9 23 - (5} -
Equity instruments through other comprahensive
income, net 22and 217 1 (1} -
10 (13} 2}
ftems that will be reclaseified subseguently fo
profit or loss:
Fair valuation of invesiments, net 2.2 and 217 - 2} &
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as
cash flow hedge, net 23mnd 217 16 G -
Farelgn currency translation 18 198 {436)
12 202 {430)
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Total other comprehensive income, net of fax 22 183 {432}

Total comprehensive income 2,508 2,328 1,620

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the company 2488 2,140 2082

Mon-contradling Interests - - -
2,486 2,140 2,052

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Quwmers of the company 2,508 2,329 1.620

Non-controdling interests o~ - -
2,508 2,329 1,620

Earnings per egquity share

Basic ($) 1.10 094 090

Diluted ($) 1.10 054 0.50

Weighted average equity shares used in
computing earmings per equity share
Basie

Dilutad

218
2,255,332.322 2,285 639,447 2,285 616,160
2257573870 2,286 396,745 2 285718 894

The accompanying notes farm an infegral parf of the consolidated financial sfatements.
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Staterments of Changes in Equity

s 1142805132 108 658 10,090 - - - {2,006} BT62
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investmants (Refer note
22and 217"
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ralated to buyback®
{Rafer note 2.13)

o metof tares

B et of treasury shares

B wreludes reasiy shares of 10,807,856 as of March 37, 2078, 71, 280574 a5 of March 31, 2077 and 11,323,576 as
of barch 34, 2048 and 5 667,200 April 1. 2015, heid by consolidated trust

The accompanying nobes fanm an infegral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Indosys Limited and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Accounting palicy

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a nor-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and [tem of income ar expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated, The Group cansidars all highly
ligquid irvestments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents

Amendment 1o 1AS 7:

Effective April 1, 2017, the Group adopied the amendment to 1AS 7, which require the entities 1o provide
disciosures that enable users of financial staterents 1o evaluate changes in labilities arising from financing
activibes, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Eatance Sheet for liabilities ansing from
financing activities, 1o meet the disclosure reguirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(Dallars in millions)

For the years ended March 31, Mote 2018 2017 2016
Operating activities:
Net profit 2486 2,140 2.052

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amoriization 27and 28 280 254 222
Interest and dividend income (129} 151) 27
incoma tax expense 2T 637 834 Teg
Effect of exchange rate changes on assets and

liabilities 3 & 10
Deferred consideration pertaining fo acquisiton 28 = - 23
Impairment foss on financial assets = 20 L]
Raduction in fair value of Disposel Group held for sale 8 ig = =
Share in net profitlass) of associate, including

impairment " 5 -~
Stock compensation expense 13 17 1
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Qther adjustments {209 T 25
Changes in working capital

Trade receivables and unbilled revenues (2371 (260} (232)
Prepayments and other assets (58] Ty (2200
Trade payables 31 (3} 3T
Client deposits 1 1 -
Uneamed revenues 104 GE 43
Other liabilitles and provisions 122 {24} 48
Cash generated from operations 3316 2,942 2,754
Income taxes paid 217 {1.059) (843} 892)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,257 2,099 1,862
Investing activities:

Expenditure on praperty, plant and equipmsent (310) (411} 413)
Loans to smployses 4 4 (11)
Fayment for acquisition of business, net of cash

acguired 28 (4] - {117}
Payment of contingent consideration pertaining o

acquisition of business 1a) i3} -
Deposits placed with corporation {20) {25) (22)
interest and dividend received 67 32 26
Investment in quoted debt securities {18} [B38) (48]
Redemption of quoled debt securities 18 1 -
Procseds from sale of equity and preference securites 5 - -
investment in equity and preference securities 4} {10} (12}
Investment in others 4] 4} {3)
Investment in certificates of deposit {1,033 {1.187) -
Redemption of certificates of deposit 1,503 - -
irmvestment in commercial papers 453 - -
Investment in liguid mubusl furds and fixed maturity

plan securities {9.628) {8.083) [3,67E)
Redemption of liquid mutual funds and fixed maturity

plan securities 9953 7759 3800
Net cash used in investing activities 482 {2,347} {474)
Financing activities:

Buyback of shares including transaction cost {2,042 - -
Shares issued on exercise of employes stock options 1 i i
Fayment of dividends {including corporate dividend

fax) [1,1586) (1,032) [1,058)
Net cash used in financing activitias 13,197) 1,032) 11,059}
et increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis {458) (1,480) 328
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 15 34 (253
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 21 3,489 4,935 4,859
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 21 3,049 3489 4935
Supplementary information:

Restricted cash balance 21 82 88 T4

The accompanying notes farm an infegral parf of the consolidated financial sfatements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Owverview
1.1 Company overview

Infasys is a leading provider of consulting, technology, outsourcing and next-generation digital services and
software. Abong with its subsidiaries, Infosys provides Business [T szervices (comprising application
development and maintenance. independent validation, Infrastruciure management, engineering services
comprising product engineering and life cycle solutions and business process managemeant), Cansulting and
systems integration services (comprising consulting, enferprise solutions, systems integration and advanced
technologies); Preducts, business platforms and solutions o accelerate intellectual property-led innovation. Its
new offerings span areas like digital, big data and analylics, cloud, data and malnframe modernization, cyber
security, (0T enginesrdng Services and API & micro services.

Infasys together with its subsidiaries and controlled trusts is herein after referred to as the “Group™.

The Company i a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Bengaluru, Karmataka, india. The Company has its primary listings on the BSE Limited and Mational Stock
Exchange of India Limited in India. The Company's American Depositary Sharées representing equily shares
are listed on the New Yark Stock Exchange (NYSE).

Further, the Company’s ADS were also listed on the Euronext London and Euronext Parnis.

On Juty 5, 2018, the Company voluntarity delisted its ADS from Euronext London and Euronext Paris due to
low average daily rading volume of its ADS on these exchanges. Infosys ADSs will continue to be listed on the
NYSE and investors can continue fo trade their ADSs an the New York Stock Exchange.

The Group's consclidated financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors
an July 18, 2016,

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, under the historical
cost convention an the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which have been measured at fair
values. Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all pericds presented in these consclidated
financial statements.

As the year-end figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digits, the figures reparted for the
previous gquarters might not always add up to the year-end figures reported in this statement.

1.3 Basiz of consolidation
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Infosys consolidates entities which it owns or confrols, The consolidated finencial statements comprise the
financial statements of the company. its controlled trusts and its subsidiaries. Contral exists when the parent
has power over the entity, s expased, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability fo affect those returns by using s power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing
rights that give the abiity to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns.
Subsidianes are consolidated from the date confrol commences until the date confrol ceases.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and infra-group
batances and transactions Including unreadlzed gain / loss from sueh transaclions are elimdnated upon
consalidation. These financial statements are prepared by applying unifarm accounting palicies in use at the
Growp. Non-controdling interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that
are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the company, are excluded,

Associates are entities aver which the group has significant influence but not contred. Investments in assoclates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The invesiment is initlally recagnized at cost, and the
carmying amount is increased or decreasad 1o recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the invesies
after ithe acquisiion date. The group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

1.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires managament to make estimates,
juggments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting
poficies and the reponted amounts of assets and liabilties, the disclosures of contingent assets and liakilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Application of accounting policies that require crifical accounting esfimates invalving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumgptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in MNote 1.5,
Accounting estimates could change fram period fo period, Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.,
Appropriate changes in estimales are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates and judgments are reflected in the consolidated financial
staterments in the period i which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

1.5 Critleal aceounting estimates and jJudgements
a. Revenue recognition

The group uses the percentage-of-complation method in accounting for its fixed-price confracts. Use of the
percentage-of-completion method reguires the group to estimate the efforts or costs expended fo date as a
propartion of the total efforts or costs {o ba expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used o measure
progress towards completion as there ks a direct relationship between input and productivity, Provigions for
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estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become
probabie based on the expecied confract estimates at the reporting date.

b. Income taxes

The company's two major tax jurisdictions are India and the U.5., though the company also files tax returms in
other oversess jurisdictions. Significant judgments are invalved in delermining the provision for income taxes.
including amount expected to be paidirecovened for uncertain tax positions (Refer to Naote 2.17).

In assessing the realizability of deferred incame tax assats, management considers whether some portion or all
of the deferred income tax assels will not be realized. The witimate realization of deferred income tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the femporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of defered income tax labllities,
projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assesement. Based on the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future laxable income over the periods in which the deferred
income tax assels are deductible, management belleves that the group will realize the benefits of those
deductible differences. The amount of the defered income tax gssets considered realizable, however, could be
reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the camry forward penod are reduced,

¢, Business combinations and Intanglble assets

Business combinations are accounted for using IFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations. IFRS 3 requires
the Identifiable intangible assets and contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascenain the net fair
value of identifiable assets, liabiliies and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant estimates are
required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These
valuations are conducted by independent valuation experts (Refer to Note 2.8 and 2.9).

d. Property, plant and equipment

Praperly, plant and equiprient represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group, The charge in
respect of pericdic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acguired and reviewed penodically. including at each
financial year end, The fives are based on historical axperience with similar assefs as well as anficipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology (Refer to Mote 2.7).

&, Impairmant of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, future cash fiows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount of cash
generating unils is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The goodwill
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impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating wnit or groups of cash-generating units which
are banefitting fram the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowes! evel at which goadwill |s
monitored for inlernal managemeant purposes.

btarket related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on
which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth
rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimaled operating margins. Cash flow projections take into
account past experienca and represent managemeant's best estimate aboul future developments (Refer to Note
2.8}

f. Disposal groups held for sale

Assets and liabilities of disposal growps hald for sale are measured at the lower of carmrying amount and fair
value less costs o sall. The determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of management sstimates
and assumplions. The falr value of the disposal groups have been estimated wsing valuation technigues
including income and markst approach which includes unobservable inputs. In estimating the fair value,
material evenis and developments, including progress on negotistions subsequent to Balence Sheet date,
have been considered, (Refer to Note 2.9),

1.6 Recent aceounting pronouncemants
1.6.1 Standards issued but not yet effective
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contract with Customers:

In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASRE) issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contract
with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entily expects o be entitied in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new slandard requires
enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
the enfity's contracts with customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

«  Full refrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retraspectively to each
prior reporting period presented in sccordance with [AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

+  Cumulative catch-up approach - Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognized at the date of Initial application

The effective date for adopfion of IFRS 15 is annual periods baginning on or after January 1, 2018, though
early adoplion is permitted,
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On completion of evaluation af the affect of adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has decided 1o use the cumuiative
catch-up transition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 and
bdarch 31, 2017 will not be retrospectively adjiusted. The effect on adoption of IFRS 15 is nsignificant on the
finencial statemeants.

IFRS 16 Leases:

On January 13, 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board issued the final version of IFRS 16,
Leases, IFRS 16 will replace the exisling leases Slandard, 185 17 Leases, and related Interprefations. The
Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both parties to a confract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. IFRS 16 infroduces a single lessee acoounting model
and requires & lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unkess the underying asset iz of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses afe charged o the statement
of eomprehensive mcome. The Standard also containg enhanced disclosure requirements for lessess IFRS 16

substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17.

The effective date for adoplion of IFRS 16 is annual pencds beginning on or after January 1. 2019, though
early adoption iz permitted for companies applying IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
Group & currently evaluating the reguirements of IFRS 16 and the Impact on the consolidated financial
statements.,

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and Advance consideration:

On December 8, 2016, the IFRS interpretations commitiee of the intermnational Accounting 3tandards Board
(1ASB) issued IFRS interpretation, IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and Advance consideration which
clarifies the date of the fransaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate lo use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received of paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or defemed income liability. If there
are multiple paymeants or receipts in advance, a date of fransaction s established for each payment or recelpt.
The effective date for adoption of IFRIC 22 is annual reporting pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
fhough early adoption is permitied.

The Group has elected to adopt IFRIC 22 prospectively on April 1, 2018. The effect on account of adoption of
IFRIC 22 on the financial statements i insignificant.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

In June 2017, the infemational Accounting Standards Board (IASE) issuad IFRS interpretation IFRIC 23
Uncettainty over income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable
profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over

239/340

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



income tax treatments under 1AS 12, According fo IFRIC 23, companies need to determing the probability of
the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or

the expected value of the tax treaiment wihen determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unusad tax losses,

unused tax cradits and tax rates,
The standard permils bwo possible mathads of ransition:

Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, IFRIC 23 will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reparting period presented in accordance with |AS 8 — Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying IFRIC 23 recognized by adjusting equity on initial
application, without adjusting comparatives

The effective date for adoption of IFRIC 23 is annual perods beginning on or afier January 1, 201%, though
early adoption is permitted, The Group is currenily evaluating the effect of IFRIC 23 an the consclidated
financial statements.

Amsndmant 1o 1AS 19 - Plan amendment, curtallment or setiement- On 7 February 2018, the LASE ssued
amendments 1o the guidance in AS 19, ‘Employes Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments reguire an entity:

« lo uge updated assumptions to determing current service cost and net interest for the rermainder of the
penod after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlemant; and

to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on setllemant, any reduction
in a surpius, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset
ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on of after 1 January 2019, though
early application is permitted. The Group s evaluating the effect of this amendment on the consolidated
financial statements and the impact is not expected o be material.
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2 Notes to the consolidated financial statemeants

2.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

(Dallars in millions)

As of

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Cash and bank deposits 2021 2206
Deposits with financial institutions 1.020 1.183
3,041 3,489

Cash and cash equivalents included under assets classified as held for
sale (Refer note no 2.3) ] —
3,049 3,489

Cash and cash eguivalents as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 include restricted cash and bank
balances of $82 milion and 558 million, respaclively. The restrictions are primarily on account of cash and
bank balances held by irrevocable trusis confrolled by the Group, bank balances held as margin money
deposits against guarantees and batances held in unpaid dividend bank accounts.

The deposits malntained by the Group with banks and financial Institution comprise of time deposits, which can
b withedrawn by the Group at any point without prior notice or penalty an the principal.

Refer note 2.3 for accounting policies on financial insfruments.
The table below provides details of cash and cash eguivalents:
(Diolkars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047

Current accounts

AMNZ Bank, Taiwan 1 -
Banamex Bank, Mexico (U.5. Dollar account) 2 1
Bank of America, LSA 180 159
Bark of Amnerica, Mexico 4 &
Bank of Zachodni WBK 3.4, Poland 3 1
Barclays Bank, UK 8 -
Bank Leumi, israel (lsraeli Sheqel account) - 2
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China Merchants Bank, China 1 1

Citibank N.A., China (LS. Dollar account) 1 2

Deutsche Bank, Czech Republic 2 1

Deutsche Bank, Philipplines (U.5. dollar account) 1 1

Deutsche Bank, Poland (Eura account) 1 1

Deutsche Bank, Switzerland 5 1

Deutsche Bank-EEFC (Australian Dollar account) - &
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Deutsche Bank, USA - 2

State Bank of india, India - 1

Siticon Valley Bank, USA - 1

Splitska Banka D.D., Societe Generale Group, Croatia

Wells Farge Bank N.A., USA - 5

- 181

Deutsche Bank, Poland a2 "

South Indian Bank, india 6% 69
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Syndicate Bank, India - g

1,603 1,978

HDFC Limited, India B3E 1.085

1,020 1,193

2.2 Investments

The camying value of investments are as follows:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Liguid mutual funds

Fixed maturity plan securities

Fair Value through Other comprehensive income:

Fair value 45 -

Fair value 208 1.219

Non-Current investments

Quoted debt securities
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Cost 281 293
Falr value through Other comprehensive income:
Quoted debt securities
Fair value 453 a7
Unguoted squity and preference securities
Fair value 2 25

Fair value through profit and loss:
Unguoted convertible promissory note

Fair value 2 i
Fixed maturity plan securities
Fair value &6 63
Others:

Fair value 10 5

283 984

Total Investments 1,865 2522
Investment camed at amartized cost 281 295
invesimenis camed at fair value through other comprehensive income 1484 1.857
Investmenis carmied at fair value through profit and loss G0 370

Nate: Uincalfed capital commitments cutstanding as of March 31, 2018 and March 37, 2017 was 512 milion
and 518 milion, respeciively.

Refer note 2.3 for accounting poficies on financial instruments:

Details of amounts recorded in other comprehensive incomea:

{Dollars in millions}

Net gain I {loss) on Year ended March 31, 2018

Gross Tax Net
Quoted debt securities 2] - {2)
Cerificate of deposits 3 {1) 2
Unquoted equity and preference securities 1 - 1
Net gain / (loss) on Year ended March 31, 2017

Gross Tax Net
Quoted debt securities {1} = (1
Cerificate of deposits (1} - (1)
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Unquoted eguity and preference securibes i1} e {1}
Met gain ! {loss) on Year ended March 31, 2016
Gross Tax HNet
Cuoted debt securities 7 (1) &

Method of fair valuation:

{Doflars in mifions)

Fair valus
As at March 31

Class of investment Method 2018 207
Licyuid rrtueal fnds Guoted price 12 278
Fhved Maturity Plan securnties Marke! obzervable inputs 86 85

Cuoted price and markat
Quated debi securities- carmied al amortized cost  observable inputs 330 334
Quoted debl securities- carred at Fair valus Quoted price and markat
through other comprehensive income observable inputs &10 813
Commercial paper Market observable inputs 45 -
Certificate of deposits Market observable inputs &04 1218
Unguoted equity and preference securities Discounted cash flows method, 21 25

Market muliples method,

Option pricing model

Discounted cash flows method,

Iarket muliples method,
Unguoted converiible promissary note Option pricing medel 2 1

Discounted cash flows method,

barket multiples method,
Cithers Option pricing model 14 5

1,904 2,561

Maote: Cerain quoled investmenis are classified as Level 2 In the absence of aclive markel for such
investrmenis.

2.3 Financial instruments

Accounting policy
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Effective April 1, 2016, the group has glected to early adopt IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments considering April 1,
2015 as the date of initial application of the standard even though the stipulated effective date for adoption s
April 1, 208

The group has classified its financial assets into the following categories based on the business maodel for
managing those assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics:

. Financial assets carried at amortized cost

* Financial assets falr valued through other comprehensive income

Financial assets fair valued through profit and loss

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any other material impact on the consclidated financial statements. hence
priar pericd figures have not been restated and the cumulative impact of $5 million has been recorded in other
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017,

2.3 Initial recognition

The group recognizes financial assets and financlal liabilittes when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on inltial recognition,
except for trade receivables which are initally measured at transaction price. Transacton costs that are directly
atfributable to the acquisttion or issue of financial assets and financial iabiities that are nat at fair value through
profit or less are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are accounted for at trade date.

2.3.2 Subsequent measurement

a. Non-derivative financial instruments

(i} Financial agsets carried at amortized cost

A fmancial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objeciive is to hold the asset in order {o colbect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount cutstanding.

{ii} Financial assets a1 fair value through other comprehensive ihcome (FYOCH

A financial asset is subsequently measured at falr value through other comprehensive income if it is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting confractual cash flows and selling financial
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assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of prncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Group has made an irevocable
election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income based on its business modef.

{ili) Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through
profit ar lass.

{iv) Financial Habilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently camied at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recagnized in a business combination which s subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss, For trade and other payables maturing within ane year from the balance sheet date, the
carmying emounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

b. Derivative flinancial instruments

The Group holds derivative financlal Instrumenis such as foreign exchange forward and oplion contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign cumency exposures. The counterparty for these
confracts is generally a bank.

{i} Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the group believes that these dervatives constitute hedges from an sconamic perspective, they may
not quality for hedge accounting under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. Any dervative that is either not
designated a hedge, or is 50 designated but is ineffective as per IFRS 9, s categonzed as a financial asset or
financial iability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized indtially at fair value and atiributable transaction costs are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when incurred. Subseguent to initial recognition, these
derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are
included in other income, Assets/ liabilities in this calegory are presented as current assets/current liabilities if
they are sither held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet date,

{ii) Cash fow hedge
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The group designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate
the rigk of foreign exchange exposure on highly prabable forecast cash transactions.

When a derivative 18 designated as a cash fiow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the dervative is recognized in cther comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash fiow hedging
reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately In the
statement of comprehensive income. if the hedging instrument no longer meets the critesla for hedge
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, If the hedging instrument expires or i soid,
terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow
hedging reserve il the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve unfil the
forecasted transaction occurs, The cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognized in the cash flow hedaing
reserve is ransferred to the statement of comprebensive incame upon the occurmence of the related forecasted
ftransaction. If the forecasted transaction Is no lohger expected fo adcur, then the amount accurmulated in cash
flow hedging reserve is reclassified to the statement of comprehensive income.

2.3.3 Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecegnizes a financial asset when the confractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer gqualifies for derecognition wnder IFRS 2. A financial
liability {or & part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the group's balance sheet when the chiigation
specified in the confract |s discharged or cancelied or expires,

2.3.4 Falr value of financlal Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instrements, the Group uses a vanety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and rieks exieting at each reporting date. The methods used 1o deternine
fair value include discounted cash fiows, avallable quoted markel prices and dealer gquotes, Afl methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

Refer ‘Financial instruments by category’ below for the disclosure on canrying value and fair value of financial
assels and liabiltiss, For financial assets and lishilities maturing within one year from the balance sheei date
and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of

thesa instruments.

2.5.5 Impairment
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The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
‘which are no! fair valued threugh profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing compenent is measured at an amaunt equal to lifettme ECL. Far all other financial assets, expecied
oredit bosses are measured &t an amount squal o the 12-menth ECL, unless thers has been a significant
increase in credit rigk from initial recognition in which case those are measurad at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is reguired to adjust the loss allywanss at the reporting date 1o the
amount that s required o be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of
comprehensive income,

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

Financial assets/ Total
Habllitles carryln
Amortised ¢ at falr value through  Financial assets/ilabliities g Total fair val
o8t profit or loss at falr value through OCl  value ue
Equity instrume
nts
Designated up dosignated upo
on n
initial recogniti Mandato initial recognitioc Mandato
on ¥ fn ry
Aszzals:
Cash and
cash
equivalents
{Refer to
Mate 2.1} 3041 - - - = 304 3.041
Invesiments
{Refer Mote
22}
Ligquic!
miutual 12
funds - - 12 - - 12
Fixad = = 66 = = BE 66
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securities 291 - - - 10 ao g40"

receivables 2018 - - - - 208 2018

Mots 2.4 456 - - - - 458 4437

Total 6.458 - 90 21 1465 8,034 8,060
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Liabilities:

Trade

payables 107 - -
Derivative

financial

instruments - - 5]
Other

liabiities

inchuding

contingent

cansideratio

n {Refer note

293 g36 - &

- - 107

107

Total 043 - 14

- - 957

957

{1}

On account of fair value changes including interest accrued

B Exludes interest accrued on quoted debt securities carried at amertized cost

The camying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2017 were as follows:

{Doflars in millions)

Financial assets/ Total
liabilities caryin
Amaortised ¢ at fair value through  Financial assats/liabilities a Tatal fair val
o5t profit or loss at fair value through ©Cl1  value ue
Equity instrume
nts
Deslgnated up designated upo
on n
initial recogniti Mandato initial recognitic Mandato
on ny n y
Assets:
Cash and
cash
eguivalents
{Refer to
MNote 2.1) 3.48% - v - - 3488 3489
Investments
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Derivative
financial
instruments - - 36 - & 44 44

Total 6,656 - 406 25 1.840 8927 8,953

Liabilities:

Trade

payables 57 - - - -~ 57 g
Other

liabilities

including

contingent

consideratio

n T8 - 13 - - TB1 7B1

Total 825 - 13 - - 238 838

T On account of fair value changes including Interest accrued

B Eweludes interest accrsed on quoted debt securities carried at amortized cost
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Bability,
gither directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. desived from prices).

Leval 3 - Inputs for the assets or labilities that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable mputs).
Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2018:

(Doliars in millions)

Falr value measurement at end

As of of
March 31, 2018 the reporting year using

Level1 Leval2 Levell

Assals

Investmants in liquid mutual fund unils (Refer to Note 2.2) 12 12 - -
Investments in fixed matirity plans (Refer Note 2 2) f6 o 86 ]
Investments in guoted debt securities (Refer to Nate 2.2) 240 701 239 -
Investments in certificate of deposit (Refer Nate 2.2} a8 - Ble -
Irvestments in commercial paper (Refer Note 2.2) 45 - 45 -
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Invesiments in unguoted equity and preference securities

(Fefer to Nate 2.2) 21 = - 21
Invesiment in unquated invesiments others (Refer Nate

2.2} il - - 10
Invesiments in unguated convertible promizssory note

{Refer to Nate 2. 2) 2 - - 2
Dernvative financlal inslruments- gain of cutstanding

foreign exchange forvard and option contracts 2 - 2 -
Liabilities

Dertvative financlal instruments- loss on outstanding

foreign exchange forward and option contracts & - B -
Liahility tawards cantingen! consideration (Refer notle 2 5)° B - - 8

' Includes 53 milian pertaining fo Briiant Basics discounted at 10%.

During the yeer ended March 31, 2018, quoted debt securities of 5130 million were transferred fram Level 1 1o
Leved 2 of fair value hierarchy, since thess were valued basad on market cbsarvable inputs and guated debt
securities of $276 million were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 of fair value hierarchy, since these were
valued based on quoted prics.

Falr value hlerarchy of assets and llabilities as of March 31, 2017:

{Daollars in millions)

Fair value measurement at end
As of of
March 31, 2017 the reporting period using

Level1 Level2 Lovel3

Assets

Invesimeants in liquid mutual fund units {Refer to Mate 2.2) 278 278 - -
Investmeants in fixed maturity plans (Refer Note 2.2) 86 s =l i
Investments in guoted debt securities (Refer to Mote 2.2) 947 565 3582 -
Invesiments in certificate of deposit (Refer Note 2.2) 1215 - 1215 -
Investments in ungouted equity and preference securities

{Refer to Nate 2.2) 25 - - 25
Investmant in unguoted invesiments others (Refer Note

2.2 5 5 = 5
Investments in ungouted converible prormissory note

{Fefer to Nate 2.2} 1 - - 1
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Derivative financial instruments- gain on ocautstanding

foreign exchange forwvard and option contracts 44 - 44 i
Liabilities
Liability towards contingent consideration {Refer note 2 5)° 13 - = 13

' Discounted 514 milion ab 14.2%,

A one percentage point change in the uncbservable inputs used in fair valuation of Level 3 assets and liabilities
does not have a significant impact i its value,

Income from financlal assets

{Dollars in millions )

Year ended March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Interast income on financial assats camed at amoriized cost 260 352 a0z
Interest income on financial assets fair valued through other
comprehensive noome 106 28 -
Davidend income on investments carried at fair value through
profit ar loss 1 4 10
Gain / (loss) on investments carmied at fair value through profit
or loss 35 18 -
406 402 412

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to & vansty of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's primary focus is o foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek o minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the Group is forsign exchangs risk.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposuras. The
Group's exposure to credit nsk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenstic of each customer and the
concentration of risk from the fop few customers.

Market risk

The Group operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and
consequently the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and services in the United States
and elsewhers, and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The Group holds
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derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option confracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in exchange rates on foreign curmency axpasures. The exchanga rale between the Indian rupee and
fareign currencies has changed substanflally In recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future.
Consequently, the results of the Group's operations are adversely affecled as the rupes appreciates/
depreciates against these currencies.

The foliewing table anafyzes foreign curmency risk from financial instruments as of BMarch 31, 2018;

(Dollars in millions)

u.s. United Kingdam Other

dollars Eure  Pound Sterling Australlan dollars currencies Total
Cash and cash equivalents 187 33 23 54 183 480
Trade recaivablas 1276 269 129 124 120 1,515
Unbilled revenues 356 98 45 24 57 581
Other assels 49 4 4 2 15 M4
Trade payables 42) (12 (17 (5 (9) (&5)
Apcrued expenses {1166} (29) {17} {3 {23) {244)
Employee benefit obligations (B8) (13 4} (28) {20) {153)
Other iabilties 8y 21 {12} {5) {45) {184)
Net assets / (llabilities) 1.485 329 152 154 274 2,394

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2047;

{Daollars in millions)

u.s United Kingdom

dollars Euro  Pound Sterling Australian doliars Other currencles Total
Cash and cash equivalenis 206 20 B 28 108 368
Trade recaivables 1,287 192 118 a7 108 1,793
Unbilled reverues are B8 50 13 47 560
Other assats 85 " 15 T & 15 108
Trade payables (18} (5} (2} (1} (24} (50}
Accrued expenses {147} (33) {22) (6] (23} {231
Employee berefit obligations (86} (13} {3} (23) (19} {144)
Other iabilties (98] (17} (7} (31 (23} {1BE)
Nat assets | (liabilities) 1,587 237 148 107 169 2,238
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For the vears ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, every percentage paint depreciation / appreciation in the
exchange rate batween the Indian rupee and the U3, dollar has affected the company's incremental operating
margins by approximately 0.50%, 0.50% and 0.50%. respectively.

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign currency upon
conversion info functional currency, due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporiing period
and the current reporting penod.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instrumends such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currancy exposures, The countarparty for these
confracts s generally a bank. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for
similar assets and liabilites in active markels of inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the
markelplace.

The follawing table gives details in respect of autstanding foreign exchange forward and options confracts:

{In miflions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Forward contracts

In Euro i 85
In United Kingdom Found Sterling - 40
In Australian dollars - 130
Option Contracts
In Australian dollars 60 -
In Eura 100 40
In United Kingaom Pound Sterling 20 -
Other darivatives
Forward contracts
I Australian dellars =1 a5
In Canadean dollars 20 -
In Euro &1 114
in Japanese Yen 250 -
In New Zealand doltars 18 -
In Norwegian Krone 40 &
In Singapore dollars s s
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In South African Rand 25 s
In Swedish Krona 50 50
In Swiss Franc 21 1o
In U.2. Dollars €23 526
In United Kingdom Paund Stering 51 5
Option contracts
In Australian dollars 20 s
In Canadian dollars - 13
In Eurg 45 25
In Swiss Franc 3 B
In LS. Dollars 320 185
In United Kingdomn Pound Sterling 23 30

The Group recognized a net gain of less than $1 million, $8% million and 54 millon on derivative financial
instrumants for the year anded March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, which are included under other

incame

The foreign exchange forward and oplion contracts malture within 12 months. The table below analyzes the
dervative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based cn the remaining pericd as of the
balance sheet date:

{Dallars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Mat later than one manth 434 55
Later than one month and not later than three months T GEE
Later than three months and nat later than one year T8 329
1.513 1,350

Durireg the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2047, the Group has designated certain foreign
exchange forward and option contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the sk of foreign exchange exposure
on highly probable forecast cash transactions. The related hedge transactions for balance in cash flow hedging
reserve as of March 31, 2015 are expected to occur and reclassified to profit or loss within 3 months.

Hedge effectivensss is determined at the inception of the hadge relationship. and through perodic prospective
effectiveness assessments o ensure thal an economic relationship exists between the hedged iem and
hedging instrument, including whather the hadging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of
hedged items.
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If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective
remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting. the hedge relationship will be
rebalanced by adjusting edher the volume of the hedging instrument ar the valume of the hedged item so that
the hedge ratio aligns with the ratic used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectivensss s
caleulated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

The faliowing table provides the reconciliation of cash flow hedge resene:
{Dallars in millions)

Year endecd Year endad
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Gain [ {Loss)

Ealance at the beginning of the pericd & =
Gain / (Loss) recognized in ather comprehensive income during the

pericd (14} 18
Amaunt reclassified to profit or lass during the period & {10)
Tax impact on above 2 {21
Balance at the end of the pericd = 6

The Group offsets a financial asset and a financial fishility when it currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and the group infends either 1o setlle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
setfle the Hability simultaneously.

The following fable provides quantitative information sbout offsetting of derivative financial assets and

derivative financial liabilities:

(Dallars in millicns)

As of As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Derivative Darivative Derlvative Derivative
financial financial lability financial financial lability
asset asset
Grass amount of recognized financial
assat/liability 3 (7 44 -
Amount sel off i) 1 o :
Net amount presented in balance sheet 2 {6} 44 -

Cradit risk
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Credit risk refers to the risk of defaull on s obligation by the counterpary resulting in a financial loss. The
maimum exposure 1o the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from frade recelvables amounting to
52 016 million and $1.900 million as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively and unbiied revenue
amounting to 3654 million and 5562 milllon as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively. Trade
receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers
primarity located in the United States. Credit risk has abways been managed by the Group through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group uses a provision maltrix to compute the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matriy takes into
account gvailable external and internal credit risk factors such as credit default swap quaotes, credit ratings from
intermational credit rating agencies and the Group's historical experience for customers

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer and top ten

clsiomers:
[In %)
Year ended March 31,
2018 2097 2016
Revenue from top customer 34 34 36
Revenue fram top ten customers 14.3 21.0 225

Cradit risk exposura

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2018 was
55 million and March 31, 2017 was 520 million, respactively. The reversal of allowance for lifetime expected
credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2018 was 57 million.

Movement in credit loss allowance

(Dailars in milians)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Ealance at the beginning 63 44 52
Translation differances 2 (1) (3)
impalment loss recognized/{reversed) 5 20 {7
Wirite affs i1 - {5
Balance at the end 69 63 44
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The Group's credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

Cradit exposure
{Doliars in millions except as otherwise stated)
Asof
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Trade receivables 2018 1.800
Unbilled revernies E54 562

Days Sales Outstanding (DS0) as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 was 67 days and 68 days
respectively.

Credit risk an cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments
primarify include investment in liguid mutual fund units, fived maturity plans, quoted bomdds issued by
government and guasi govemment organizations, non-convertible debentures, cerificates of deposit and
commercial papers.

Liquidity risk

The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated
from cperations. The Group has no outstanding borrowings. The Group belleves that the waorking capital |s
sufficient to meet its current requirements.

As of Mareh 31, 2018, the Group had a working capital of 55,243 million including cash and cash equivalents of
53,041 milkon and current investments of 3982 million, As of March 31, 2017, the Group had a warking capital
of $6,121 milien including cash and cash eguivalents of $3 4859 million and current investments of $1,538
milficn.

Ag of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the outstanding employes benefit obligations were 3225 milllion and
5209 million, respectively, which have been substantially funded. Accordingly, no liquidity risk |s perceived.

The table below provides datails regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial Babilities as of
March 31, 2018:

[(Dellars in millions)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 24 years 4-T years Total
years

Trade payables 107 - - - 107
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Qther hiabilies (excluding liabilities towards
condingent consideration - Refer fo note 2.5) 836 = = = e3g
Ligbility towards contingent consideration on an
undiscounted basis - (Refer 1o Note 2.5) & 1 1 - <]

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturtes of significant financial Babilibes as of

March 31, 2017:

{Dallars in milisns)
Particulars Lass than 1 year 1-2 2-4 years 4-T years Total

years

Trade payables 57 - - - 57
Cither Habilities (exciuding labilities towards
contingent consicderalion - Refer lo nots 2.5) 763 8 - - 768
Liahifity towards contingent consideration cn an
undiscounted basis - (Refer o Nole 2.3) T T = - 14

2.4 Prepayments and other assets
Frepaymenis and other assets caonsist of the following:
(Dellarg in milions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current
Rental deposits 2 1
Security deposits 1 2
Loans fo employees 37 42
Prepaid expenses ' 72 63
Inferest accrued and not due 117 88
Withholding taxes and others’ 158 201
Advance payments to venders for supply of goods 1" 18 pels]
Deposit with comporation 236 218
Deferred contract cost ™ 7 12
Other assets 14 g
GE2 749
Non-current
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Financial assels in prepayments and other assets 456 410

M Nen-financial assels

‘Withholding taxes and others primarily consist of input tax credits. Security deposits relate principally to leased
telephone lines and electricity supplies. Deferred contract eosts are upfront costs incurred for the contract and
are amortized over the term of the contract.

Deposit with corparation represents amounts deposited fo seftle certain employee-related obligations as and
when they arise during the narmal course of business,

2.5 Other liabilities

Cher lighilities comprise the following:

(Dallars in millions}

March 31, 2018 March 31, 217

Accrued compensation to empioyees 385 280

Liabifities of controlled trusts 21 22

Deferred rent ' 4 -
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Liabifity towards contingent consideration (Refer note 2.9} 2
Accrued compensation to empioyees o 5
Accrued gratuity (Refer note 212,131 4 -
Deferrad income - government grant an land use rights ' 7 &
Deferred income ™ 5 7
Deferred rent 24 -
42 24
1,078 a78
Fenancial liabifities included in ather kabliites Bad 776
Conbingent consideration on undiscounted basis 8 14

M Non-financial abilities

Accrued expenses primarily relate to cost of technical sub-contractors, telecommunication charges, legal and
professional charges, brand building expenses. overseas travel expenses and office maintenance. Others
include unpaid dividend balances and capital creditors.

2.6 Provisions

Accounting policy

A provislon Is recognized I, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

a. Post sales client support

The group provides its clients with a fixed-period post-sales support for corrections of errors and suppart on all
its fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated with such suppor services are acerued at the time
refated revenues are recorded and included in cost of sales. The group esfimates such costs based on
histarical experience and esfimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for any material changes In assumptions
and likelihaod of occurréncs.

b. Onerous contracts
Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized whan the expected banefits to be derived by the Group from a

contract are kywer than the unavoidabla costs of mesting the future obligations under the contract, The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the confract and the
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expected net cost of continuing with the confract. Before a provision is established the Group recognizes any
impadrment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Provisions comprise the follawing:

{Dallars in millions )

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for post sales client suppart and other provisions 75 63
75 63

Provision for post sales client support and other provisions represents costs associated with providing salas
support services which are accrued at the time of recognition of revenues and are expected to be utilized over
a perod of & months to 1 year. The movement in the provision for post sales client support and other provisions

s as follows:
{Dallars in millions)
Year ended March
3,
2018
Balance at the beginning 83
Translation differences -
Provision recognized / (reversad) 22
Frovision utilized {10}
Balance at the end 73

Provision for post sales client support and other provisions is included in cost of ales in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,

As of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, claims against the Group, not acknowledged as debls. net of
amounts paid (excluding demands from income tax autherities- Refer to Mote 2.17) amounted to $40 million
(F260 crore) and 346 million (301 crore). respectively.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impaimment, if any. Costs
directly altributable to acquizsition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by management. The group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
livess using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Buildings 22 - 25 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Computer sguipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fistures 5 years
Vehlcies 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over lease tenm

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed pericdically, including at each financial
vear end.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date and the cost of assets not ready o use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-progress’.
Subsequent expenditures relating fo property. plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
refiably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the stalement of comprehensive income when
incurred. The cost and related accumulated depraciation are siiminated from the financial statements upon
sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are eveluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use) = determined on an
individual asset basis uniess the asset does nat generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considersd to be impalred, the impaiment to be recognized in the statement of
comprehensive Income is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment (0ss is reversed in the statement of comprehensive
income if there has been a change in the estimates vsed fo determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed
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the carrying amount thet would have been determined {net of any accumulated deprecietion} had no

impairment foss been recognized for the assel in prior years.

Foflowing are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year anded barch 31,
2018:

(Dioliars in millions)
Fumniture
Plant and Computer and
Land Bulldings machinery equipment fixtures Vehicles Total

Gross carmying value as of April 1,

217 2 1,123 466 700 2681 5 2,827
Additions 21 122 56 73 28 1 30z
Deletions - - (3 (17} (3} {1y {24)
Reclassified under held for sale (refer

note 2.4 - - e (&) (4} =
Translation difference (1 2 (1} {1} 2 - 1
Gross carrying value as of

March 31, 2018 232 1.247 518 749 285 5 3,006
Accumulated depreciation as of

April 1, 2017 14y (378) {301) (471} (168) 13} (1,323)
Depreciation 1 {43} {82} (107} {40) (1 {254)
Accumisdaled depraciation on

deletions - - 2 17 3 1 23
Reclassified under held for sale (refer

note 2.9) - - = 4 2 -
Translation difference - 2 2 - {1} -
Accumulated depreciation as of

March 31, 2018 9 1417 {359) (55T} (203) {3) {1,544}
Capital work-in-progress as of

March 31, 2018 n
Carrying value as of March 31,

2018 287 830 154 192 a2 2 1,883
Capital work-in-progress as of

April 1, 2017 303
Carrying value as of April 1, 2017 268 47 165 229 a3 2 1,807
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Feflowing are the changes in the carrving value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31,

2mT:

{Dollars in millions]

Plant and

Computer

Land Buildings machinery equipment

Fumniture
and

fixtures Vehicles Total

Gross carrying valus as of April 1,

2016 244 955 392 615 218 4 2428
Additions 22 147 73 120 a7 1 420
Daletions - - =3 (47) (T 1y {7
Translation difference & 21 8 12 3 1 52
Gross carmying value as of

March 31, 217 272 1,123 AGG 100 261 5 2827
Accumulated depreciation as of

April 1, 2018 3 (332) (243 1395) (149) 13) (1,125)
Depreciation (1 {35) (57} (101} {3 (1) {226)
Accumuiated depraciation on

dejations o o b 34 14 1 54
Translation differance - =] (B} 9) (2} - (2B
Accumulated depreciation as of

March 31, 2017 el {376) (301) 471} (168) (3] (1,323)
Capital work-in-progress as ol

March 31, 2017 303
Carrying value as of March 31,

2017 268 47 165 229 a3 2 1,807
Capital work-in-progress as of

April 1, 2016 286
Carrying value as of April 1, 2016 241 623 149 220 &9 1 1,589

Foflowing are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31,

2018

{Dollars in
mmibliens)

Plant and Computer Furniture and
Land Buildings machinery equipment

fixtures Vehicles Total

269/340

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



Gross carrying value as of

April 1, 2015 250 840 KET) 535 188 6 2257
Additians ;- g8 76 168 40 1 362
Daletions - - (1) (B0 (1) {2y B4
Translation difference {15} (53 120} (28] {10} (1) (127)
Gross carrying value as of

March 31, 2016 244 855 a2 615 218 4 2428
Accumulated depreciation as

of April 1, 2013 13} (317} 1207} {365) 1132} (3] (1,027}
Depreciation {1} (33) {49y [B4) {24) i1 {192)
Accumulated depreciation on

deletions 5 1 1 6 1 1 39
Translation differance 1 18 12 18 B - 55
Accumulated depreciation as

of March 31, 2016 (3 (332) (243) {395) (149) (3] (1,125)
Capital work-in-progress as of

March 31, 2016 2B6
Carrying value as of March

3, 2016 241 623 149 220 69 1 1,589
Capital work-in-progress as of

April 1, 2015 230
Carrying value as of April

1, 2015 247 623 130 170 57 3 1460

The aggregate depreciation expense is included in cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income.

Carrying value of land includes 398 millon and 599 million as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,
respectively, towards amounts pald under certain lease-cum-sale agreements to acquire land, inciuding

agreements where the company has an option to either purchase the properties or renew the lease on expiry of

the lease period.

The contractual commitments for capital expenditure were $223 million and $177 million as of March 31, 2018

and March 31, 2017, respectively.

2.8 Goodwill and intangible assets

2.8.1 Goodwill
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Accounting policy

Goodwill represents the cost of business acquisilion in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
identifable assets, liabilites and contingent labilities of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent labilittes scquired exceeds the cost of business acguisition, & gain is
recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. Goodwill s measured at cost less
accumulated impaiment kosses.

Impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annuel basis and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be
impaired, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's cash
genarating units (CGU) or groups of CGU's expected to benafit from the synergies afsing fram the business
combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash infiows from other assets or group of assets. Impaiment ocowrs whan the camying
amount of a CGEU including the goodwill. exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The
recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. Valuee-in-use is
the present value of future cash flows expected 1o be derived from the CGL

Total impairmeant loss of a CEL is allocated first to reduce the camying amount of goodwill allocated fo the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGL.
An impairment boss on goodwill is recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income and is not reversed in
the subsequent period.

Foflowing is a summary of changes in the cammying amount of goodwill:

(Dollars in millions)

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Carrying value at the beginning 563 588
Goodwill on Brilkiant Basics acquisiton (Refer to note 2.9) 5 -
Goodwill reclaseified Under assets held for sale (Refer note no 2.5) {247) -
Translation differences 18 (5}
Carrying value at the end 329 563
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Fer the purpase of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in & business combination is aflccated to the cash
generating units (CGU) or groups of CGUs, which are benelited from the synergies of the acquisition. The
Chiefl Operating Decision Maker reviews the goodwill for any Impalrment at the operating segment level, which
is represented through groups of CGUs,

The folfowing table presenis the allecation of goodwill to operating segments:

{Dellars in rovilliomns)

Segments As of March 31,
2018 2017
Financial services T3 127
Manufacturing 38 B3
Retail, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics 45 86
Life Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance 68 S8
Energy & utilities. Communication and Services Ta 118
300 492
Crperating segments without significant goadwill 3® 71
Tatal 339 563

The recoverable amount of a CGLU is the higher of its fair value less cost to seli and i85 value-in-use. The fair
value of a CGU is defermined based on the market capilalization. The valus-in-use is determined based on
specific calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections over a period of five years. A range
of each assumplion used is menfioned below. Ag at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the estimated
recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its cammying amount. The key assumptions used for the caleulations

are as follows:

As at March 31, 2018 207
Long term growth rate {%) 810 8-10
Operating margins (%) 17-20 17-20
Discount rate (%) 135 14.4

The management believes that any reasonable possible changes in the key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.

2.8.2 Intangible assets

Accounting policy
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Intangible assets are stated af cost less accumulated amortization and impeirment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful ves on a straight-line basgis, from the date that they
are available for use. The estimated useful lite of an identifiable Intangible asset |s based en a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, compatition, and other aconomic factors (such as the
stability of the industry, and known technological advances. Amortization methods and wseful lives are
reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Research coste are expensed as incusred. Software product development costs are expensad as incusred
unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the scftware and the costs can
be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of material, direct labour, overhead
costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for ils intended use.

Impairment

Intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an indivicual asset basis
unless fhe asset doas not generate cash flows that are largely independent of thase from other assets, In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considersd to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the stetement of
comprehensive [ncome is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assels exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the staternent of comprehensive
incarme if thers has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased 1o its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed
the carrying amwount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Foflowing are the changes in the carrying value of acquired ntangible assets for the year ended March 31,
2018:

(Dallars in millions)

Inteliectual Land

property  use
Customer Soltware Sub-contracting rights rights Marketing

related  related right related related related  related Others Total
Gross carrying 116 62 3 - 10 14 10 215
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wvalue as of
April 1, 2017

Deletion/ retirals 27} - (3 - - {41

amortization as of
April 1, 2017 (59} {19) i3 - 1) {7 6y (95)

Lifa (it years) 210 - - - 50 5 5
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of acquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,

207

(Daliars in miflions)

Customer Software Sub-contracting
related  related

right related

Inteliectual

Land
use

rights rights
related related

Marketing

related Others Total

Gross carmying
value as of
April 1, 2016
Deletion
Translation
differences

"7

(1}

Gid

11

(1)

14

10

217

(2

Gross carmying
value as of

March 31, 2017

16

10

14

10

215

Accumulated
amortization as of
April 1, 2016
Amartization expanse
Deletion

Translation
differences

{46)
{14}

{9
(9}

i)

3

{1}

{5)
2)

4
3}

(G}
(28]

Accumulated
amaortization as of
March 31, 2017

{59)

19)

13

]

{7

()

195)

Carrying value as of
March 31, 2017

43

120

Carrying value as of
April 1, 2016

7

53

10

149

Estimated Useful
Life {in yaars)
Estimated
Remaining Usaful
Life (in years}

310

16

50

310

-8

35

1-4
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During the year ended March 31, 2017, the management based on an infemal evaluation reassessed the
remmaining useful life of cerain software technology assett acquired as a part of business combinations.
Accordingly, the remaining useful life of the said asset which was 8 years has been revised to 3 years.
Armortization expense for the year ended March 31, 2017 is higher by $2 millicn due to the revisian,

Following are the changes in the carrying value of scquired intangible assets for the year ended March 31,
2018:

(Daliars in miflions)

Intellectual  Land
property  use
Customer Software Sub-contracting rights rights Marketing
related  related right related related related  related Others Total

Gross camying

value as of

April 1, 2015 72 42 3 2 i1 8 5 143
Additions through

business

combinations (Refar

fonote 2.9) 45 Z1 - - - B 4 7B
Deletion - - - (2] - - = (2}

Translation

differences - (1) - - = i 1 ]

Gross carmying
value as of
March 31, 2016 117 62 3 - 11 14 10 217

Accumulated

amaortization as of

April 1, 2015 (26) i3 13 (2] 1) (50 (1) (41)
Amortization expensa {20} =H - - - i1 (3 30
Deletion - - - 2 - - - 2
Translaticn

differences - - - - - 1 - 1

Accumulated
amortization as of
March 31, 2016 (48] 13) 13) - {1} {5} (4] (68}

Carrying value as of
March 31, 2016 71 53 - - 10 b & 149
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Carrying value as of

April 1, 2015 46 3 - - 10 3 4 102
Estimated Useful

Lifa (in years) 3-10 B8-10 - - 50 30 35
Estimated

Remaining Usalul

Life (i years) -7 -4 - - 45 2-0 -5

The aggregate amorization expense is included in cost of sales in the consobidated staterment of
comprehansive Ncome.

Research and development axpense recognized in the consolidated staternent of comprehansive income, for
the years ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2096 were $116 million, $118 milion and $108 million,
respectively.

2.9 Business combinations and Disposal group heid for sale

a. Business combinations

Accounting Palicy:

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acguisition method under the provisions of IFRS 3
(Revised), Business Combinaticns.

The cost of an acquisition is measuned at the fair value of the assels transferred, aguity instruments issued and
liabiltias incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition, which is the date an which contral is fransferred to the
Group, The cost of acquisition also mcludes the fair value of any contingent consideration, [dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent labilites assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their falr value on the date of acquisition.

Business combinations between entiies under common control |s cutside the scope of IFRS 3 (Revised),

Business Combinations and is accounted for at carmrying value.
Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finders' fees, legal

fees, due diligence feas, and other professional and consulling fees are expensed as incurred.

Kallidus Inc. (d.b.a Skava)
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Cn June 2, 2015, Infosys acquired 1007% of the voting interests in Kallidus Inc., US, a provider of digital
experience solutions, including mobile commerce and in-store shopping experiences to large retail clients and
100% of the voting inferests of Skava Systems Private Limited, an affiliate of Kallidus. The business acquisition
was conducted by entaring inta @ share purchase agreement for cash consideration of $31 million and a
contingent consideration of up 1o $20 million.

The excess of the purchase consideration paid aver the fair value of net assets acquired has been attributed to
goodwl.

The purchasea price has been alldcated based on managemeant's estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:

{Drattars in millions)

Acquinee’s Purchase

carrying Fair valus price

Componant amount  adjustments allocated
Met Assals” ] - &
Intangible assets — technology 5 21 2
Intangible assets — trade name - 2 2
Intangible assets — custamer contracts and relationships 5 o 27
Deferred tax liabilities an intangible assets - (20% (207
B n 3B

Goodwill ™
Total purchase price 107

Inciudies cash and cash equivalents acquired of 54 milion.
The goodwill is ot tax deductible.

The grass amount of rade receivables acquired and its fair value is 53 million and the amounts have been fully
callecied.

The sequisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:

{Daflars i millians)

Consideration
Componant settlad
Cash Paid "
Fair value of contingent consideration 16
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Total purchase price 107

The transaction cosis of 52 million related fo the acquisition have been included under administrative expenses
in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 216,

MNoah Consulting LLC

Cn November 16, 2015, Infosys has acquired 100% membership interest in Noah Consulting, LLC, a provider
of advanced information managemeant consulting services for the il and gas industry. The business acguisition
was conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for cash consideration of $33 million, a contingent
cansideration of up to $5 million and an additonal consideration of up to $32 million, referred to as retention
bonus payable fo the amployees of Noah at each anniversary year following the acguisition date for the next
three years, subject to their continuous employment with the group at each anniversary. The retention bonus is
treated as a post-acquisition employee remuneration expense as per IFRS 3 (Revised),

The purchase price has been allocated based on management’s estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:

{Craftars in millions)

Acqgulres's Purchasea

carrying Fair valus price

Component amount adjustments allocated
Met Assats® B -
Intangible aszets — technical know-how L 4

Intangible assets — rade name - 4 4

intangible assets — customer contracts and relationships - 18 18

g 26 3z

Goadwill 5

Total purchase price w

* Includes cash and cash equivelents acquired of 83 million.
Goodwill of $1 million is tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade recaivables acquired and its fair value is 34 million and the amounts have been fully
collecied.

The acguisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:
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{Datlars in milions)

Consideration
Component settied
Cash Paid 33
Fair value of contingent consideration 4
Total purchase price i

During fiscal 2016, based on an assesament of Noah achieving the targets, the entire contingent consideration

has been reversed in the statement of comprehensive income,

The transaction cosis of 52 million related to the acquisition have been included under administrative expenses
in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016,

Business Transfer

Cn July 14, 2017, the Board of Direclors of Infosys authorized the Company 1o execute & Business Transfer
Agresment and related documents with Noah Consulting LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary, to fransfer the
business of Neah Consuling LLC to Infosys Limited, subject to securing the requisite regulatory approvals for a
consideration based on an independent valuation. Subsequently aon October 17, 2017, the company entered
info a business transfer agreement to fransfer the business for a consideration of 541 milion (appraximataly
#2686 crore) and the transfer was with effect from October 25, 2017, The transaction was betwesen a holding
company and a wholly owned subsidiary and therefore was accounted for at carrying values and did not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements. Subsequently in Movember 2017, Noah Ceonsulting LLC
has been liquidated.

EdgeVerve Systams Limited

EdgeVerve was created as a wholly owned subsidiary to focus on developing and selling products and
platfarms. Cn Apsil 15, 2014, the Board of Directors of Infosys authorized the Company to execute a Business
Transfer Agresment and related documents with Edge'erve, subject 1o securing the requisite approval from
sharehalders in the Annual General Meeting. Subsequently, at the AGM held on June 14, 2014, the
sharehalders authorized the Board to enter into a Business Transfer Agreement and related documents with
Edge'erve, with effect from July 1, 2014 or such other date as may ba decided by the Board of Direclors. The
company had underakan an enterprise valuation by an independent valuer and accordingly the business was
tramsferred for a consideration of $70 millkon (#4231 crore) with effect from July 1, 2014 which was settled
throwgh the ssue of fully paid up equity shares,

The transfer of assets and llabilities is aceounted for at carrying values and does not have any impact an the
consclidated financial statements.

Finacle and Edge Services

280/340

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn



On April 24, 2015, the Board of Directors of Infosys authorized the Company to execute a Business Transfer
Agreament and related documents with EdgeVerve, a wholly owned subsidiary, to transfer the business of
Finacle and Edge Services. Post the requisite approval from shareholders through pestal ballot on June 4,
2015, a Business Transfer Agreement and other related documents were executed with Edge\erve (o transfer
the business with effect from August 1, 2015 The company had undertaken an enterprise vabuation by an
independent valuzr and accordingdly the business was fransferred for a consideration of 33,222 crore
(approximately $491 million) and F177 crore (approximately $27 milion) for Finacle and Edge Services,
respactively.

The consideration was settled through issue of 850,000,000 equity shares amounting to €830 crore
{approximately $129 million) and 254, 200,000 non-comvertible redeemable debentures amounting to 2,549
crore {approximataly $389 milkon) in EdgeVerve, post the requisite approval from shareholders on December
11, 2013, During the year ended March 31, 2018, EdgeVerve has repaid $39 crore (approximately 554
million) by redeeming proporionate number of debentures.

The transfer of assets and liabilities was accounted for at camying values and did not have any impact on the
consaldated financial statements.

Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited:

On Seplember 8, 2017, Infosys acquired 100% of the voling interests in Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited,, UK,
{Brilkant Basics) a product design and customer experience innovator with experience in executing global
pregrams. The business acquisition was conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for cash
consideration of 34 milllon, confingent consideration of up to $3 million and an additional consideration of &2
miillion, referred to as retention bonus, payable to the employess of Brilliant Basics at each anniversary year
over the next bwo years, subject to their continuows employmeant with the group at each anniversary.

The payment of contingent consideration to seflers of Brilliant Basics is dependent upon the achievement of
cerigin financial targets by Brilliant Basics over a penod of 3 years ending on March, 2020,

The fair value of contingent consideration is determined by discounting the estimated amount payvable to the
sellers of Brilliant Basics on achievement of certain financial fargeis. The key inputs used in determination of
the fair value of contingent consideration are the discount rate of 10% and the probabilities of achievement of
the financial targets,

The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired has been atfributed to
goadwill,

The purchase price has been allocated based on management's estimates and independent appraisal of fair
values as follows:
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(Dottars i mitlions)
Acquirea's carrying Falr value Purchase price
Component amount adjustmants allocated
et assets” - N -
Intangible assets - custamer - 2 2
relationships
Deferred tax liabilities an - - -
intangible assets
- Z
Goodwill g
Total purchase price T

-

Includes cash and cash equivalents acquired of less than $1 million
The goochwill is nat tax deductible.

The gross amount of trade recaivables acquired and its fair value s bess than 51 million and the amounts have
bean largely collected.

The acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration as of the acquisition date is as follows:

{Doars in mitions)
Conslderation
Component settled
Cash paid
Fair value of contingent consideration
Total purchase price T

The fransaction costs of less than $1 million related to the acquisition have been Included under administrative
expanses in the statement of compreheansive income.

Acquisition

On May 22, 2018, Infosys acguired 100% of the wvoling interests in WongDoody Hedding Company Inc.,
{WongDoodyy a U.S-based, full-service creative and consumer insights agency. WongDoody brings to
Infasys the creative talent, marketing and brand engagement expertise. Further the acquisition is expected to
strangthen Infosys' creative, branding and customer experence capabilities.

The business acquisiion was completed on May 22, 2018 for a purchase consideration was 551 million
(comprising of cash of 538 milion and contingent consideration of $13 milllan). The purchase consideration
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was allocated o net tangible assets of 55 million. cusiomer confracts and relationships of $20 million,
tradename of $1 millicn resulting in a goodwill of 525 million. Goodwill is tax deductible.

Additionally a consideration of up to 59 million of retention banus is payable 1o the employees of WangDoody
over the next three years, subject fo their continuous employment with the group.

b, Disposal group held for sale
Accounting policy

Non-current assets and disposel groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be
recovered principally throwgh sale rather than through continuing use. The condition for classification of held for
sale is met when the non-current asset or the disposal group s available for immediate sale and the same |s
highly probable af being completed within one year from the date of classification as held for sale. Non-current
assels and disposal groups held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and falr value less cost
to sell. In estimating the fair value, material events and developments, including progress on negotiations
subsaquent to Balance Sheet date, have been considersd.

In March 2018, on conclusion of a strategic review of the portiolio businesses, the Company initialed
identification and evaluation of polential Buyers for its subsidianes, Kallidus and Skava (together referrad (o as
"Skava') and Panaya (collectively referred to as the “disposal group®). The Company anticipates completion of
the sale by March 2018 and accordingly, assets amounting to 3316 milion and fiabilities amounting to 350
millon in respect of the disposal group have been reclassified under “held for sale”. On reciassification, the
disposal group has been measured at the lower of camying amount and fair value less cost fo sell and
consaguently, a reduction in the fair value of Disposal Group held for sale amounting to $18 millkion in respect
of Panaya has been recognized under other income in the consalidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended March 31, 2018.

The disposal group does not constitute a separate major compenent of the company and therefore has not
been dassified as discontinued operations.

2.10 Revenue from operations

Accounting policy

The Group derives revenues primarily from software development and refated services and from the licensing
of software products. Arrangements with custorners for software related services are mainly either on a

fized-price, fixed-timeframe or on a time-and-material basis.

Revenue an time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenus
from the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date is recognized as unbilled revenues, Revenue from
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fixed-price, fixed-timeframe confracts, where there is no uncertainty as o measwrament or collectability of
consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there s uncerainty as to
measurement or ulimale collectability, revenue recognilion is postponed until such uncertalnty is resalved.
Effarts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct
relationship between input and productivity, Provisions for estimated lesses, if any, on uncompleted contracts
are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract estimates.
Costs and earmings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenus while billings in excess of costs and
earnings are classified as uneamed revenue. Deferred confract costs are amortized over the term of the
contract, Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance
arrangemant.

In arangements for software development and refated services and maintenance services, the Group has
applied the guidance in |AS 18, Revenue, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each separately
identifiable component of a single transaction. The arrangements generally mest the criteria for considering
software developmen! and related services as separately identifiable components. For allocating the
consideration, the Group has measured the revenue in respect of each separable compaonent of a transacticn
at its fair value, in accordance with principies given in 1AS 18. The price that is regularly charged for an item
when sold separately is the best evidenca of its fair value. In cases where the Group is unable to establish
obective and reliable evidence of fair value for the software development and related services, the Group has
used a residual method to allocate the arangement consideration. In these cases, the balance of the
conssderation, after allocating the fair values of urdelivered compaonents of a transaction has been allocated to
the delivered companents for which spacific fair values do not exist,

License fee revenues are recognized when the general revenue recognition criteria given in IAS 18 are met.
Arrangerments to dellver software procucts generally have three elements: lleense, implementation and Annal
Technical Services (ATS). The Group has applied the principles given in 1A% 18 fo account for revenues from
these multiple element amangements. Objective and reliable evidence of fair value has been established for
ATS. Objective and relisble evidence of fair value is the price charged when the element is sold separately.
When other services are provided in conjunction with the licensing amangemeant and objective and reliabie
evidence of thelr fair values have been established, the revenue from such confracts are allocated to sach
component of the conltract in a manner, whereby revenue is deferred fod the undelivered services and the
residual smounts are recognized as revenue for delivered elerneants, In the absence of objective and relisble
evidence of fair value for implementation, the entire arrangement fee for license and implementation s
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method as the implementation is performed. Revenue from
client training, support and other senvices ansing due to the sale of software products |s recognized as the
services are performad. ATS revenue is recognized rateably over the period i which the services are
rendered,
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Advances received for services and products are reporied a5 olient depogits untll gil conditions for revenue
recognition are met.

The Group accounts for valume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based
on the ratabie allocation of the discounts’ incentives amount to each of the underlying revenue ransaction that
results in progress by the customer fowards eaming the discount’ incentive. Also, when the level of discount
varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the Group recognizes the liability based on its estimate
of the customer's future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met, or if the
amount therecf cannot be estimated reliably, then discount is not recagnized until the payment is probable and
the ameount can be estimated reliably. The Group recognizes changes in the estimated amount of gbligations
far discounts in the period in which the change ocours. The discounts are passed on o the customer either as
dirgt] payments of 8% @ reduction of payments dug from the customer.

The Group presants revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of comprehensive income,

Revenues for flscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

{Dollars in milions)

Particulars Yoar ended March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Revenus from software services 10.618 9895 8210
Revenus from software products 20 3 291
10,939 10,208 9,501

2.11 Expenses by nature

(Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2017 2016
Employes benefit costs 5,034 2812 5.236
Deferred purchase price pertaiming {0 acquisition® - - 23
Depreciation and amorization charges (Refer to Mote 2.7 and
2.5) 258 254 22z
Travelling costs 310 333 3
Cost of technical sub-coniraciors 666 571 537
Cast of software packages for own use 138 113 113
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Third party items bought for service delivery to clients 152 120 81
Operating lease payments (Refer to Note 2,15} &2 T3 55
Cansuitancy and professional charges 182 114 118
Commumnication costs 78 &2 B2
Repairs and maintenance 174 181 160
Rates and Taxes 25 22 17
Provision for post-sakes clisnt support Fis 12 1
Power and fual 32 34 33
Caommission fo non-whole time directors 1 z 1
Branding and marketing expenses 47 51 44
Impairment boss recognized/ireversed) on financlal assels 11 21 {7
Insurance charges g & 9
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility 24 34 33
Others 26 36 v
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses and

administrative expenses 8,280 T.688 T.126

Pertaining to Infasys Consulting acguisifion

Operating profit

Crperating profit for the Group is computed considering the revenues, net of cost of sales, selling and marketing
expenses and administrative sxpenses.

2.12 Employes benefits

Accounting policy

Gratuity

The Grouwp provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan {‘the Graluity Plan covering eligibie
employees of infosys and its Indian subsidiaries. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment fo vesied
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based an the
respective amployea's salary and the tenure of amplayment with the Groug.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an indepandent

actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Campany fully contributes all
ascertained labilities to the infosys Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust (the Trust). In case of Infosys BPM
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and EdgeVerve, confribadions are made io the Infosys BPM Limited Employess' Graity Fund Trust and
EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employvees' Gratuity Fund Trust, respectively. Trustees administer contributions
made o the Trusts and confributions are nvested in a scheme with Life Insurance Carporation of India as
permitied by Indian 2w,

The Group recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset of ability.
Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benafit Hability ¢ asset are recognized in other
comprehensive incoms and not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pericd. The aciual return of the
portfolio of plap assets. in excess of the yvields computed by applving the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit chligation is recognized in oiher comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendmenis
are recognized in net profits in the statement of comprehensive income.

Provident fund

Eligible employees of Infosys receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the
eligible employes and the company make monthly centributions 1o the providant fund plan equal to 8 specified
percentage of the caversd employes's satary. The company contributés a portion of the contributions to the
Infosys Limited Employeas’ Provident Fund Trusl The trust invests in specific designated instruments as
permitted by Indlan law, The remaining portion is contributed to the government admindstered pension fund,
The rate at which the annual interess is pavable to the beneficiaries by the trust (s being administared by the
government. The company has an obligation 1o make good the shartfall, if any, between tha return from tha
investranis of the Trust and the notified interest rate.

In regpect of indian subsidiares, sligible emplovess receive benefits from a provident fund, which i¢ a defined
confribation plan. Bath the eligible employves and the respective companies make monthly contributions to this
provident fund plan egual 1o & specified percentage of the covered amploves’s salary. Amounts collected under
the provident fund plan are deposited in a government administered provident fund. The companies have no
furthar obligation to the plan bayvand their monthly contributions.

Superannuation
Certain employess of Infosys, Infosys BPM and EdgeVerve are panticipants in a defined contribution plan. The
Group has no further obligations 1o the Plan Beyond its monthly contributions which are periodically confributed

o a trust fund, the corpus of which i invested with the Life Insurance Corparation of India.

Compensated absences
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The Group has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating i
nature. The expectsd cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
peformed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the
additional amount expecied to be paidiavailed as a result of the unused entiisment that has accumulated at
the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in
which the absences ocour.

2,121 Gratufty
The foblowing tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized In the Group's

financial statements as of March 21, 2018 and March 31, 2017:

(Dollars in miflions)
As of
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Change in benafit ohiigations

Benefit abligations at the beginning 172 142
Service cost 73 19
Interast expense 11 10
Remeasurements - Actuarial losses | (geins) {3) 10
Transfer i -
Curiailment gain = i
Benefits paid (17 (13
Translation differances i 4
Benafit obligations at the and 184 ir2
Changs in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 1684 143
Intersst Income 12 12
Remeasurements — Returns on plan assets excluding amaunts included

in interest income 2 2
Canfributions = ar
Eenefits paid (17} (13)
Translaticn differences 1 3
Fair value of plan assets at the end 187 184
Eunded status 3 12
Prapaid gratuity benefit 7 12
Accrued gratulty 14) -
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Met gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 201§ comprises the following companents:

{Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 17 2016
Senvice cost 23 13 18
het interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset {1} 2y {13
Net gratulty cost 22 17 17

Amount for the fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 recognized in statement of other comprehensive income:

(Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 217 2016
Re-measurements of tha net defined benefit liability / asset
Actuarial gains] / losses () 10 3
{Retum) | loss on plan assets excluding amounts included in
the net inferast on the net defined benefit lisbility [ asset 2} {21 1)
Total {11} ] 2
[Dallars in millions)
Yaar ended March 31,
018 w17 2016
{Gain} 1 loes from change in demographic assumptions - - -
{Galn) i loss from change in financial assumptions &} 2 -
{Gain) | loss from change in experence adjustments {3} 2 3
(4} 10

The gratulty cost recognized in the statement of comprehensive income appartioned betwesn cost of sales,
selling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses on the basis of direct employee cosl is as follows:

(Dallars in milllons)

Year anded March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Costof sales 20 15 15
Selling and marketing expenses i i i
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Administrative expenses 1 1 1

22 v 17

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benafit abligations as of March 31, 2018 and March 21,
2017 are set out below;

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount rate T.5% £.8%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels B.0% B.0%

The weighted-average assumptions used to determing net perodic benefit cost far the year ended March 31,
2018, 2017 and 2016 are set out bedow:

Year ended March 31,
2018 a7 2016
Discount rate for tha year 5.5% T:B% 7.8%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 8.0% B.0% B.0%
VWeighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 6.1 years 6.1 years 6.4 ymars
Diseount rate In India, the market for high quality corporate bonds being not developed, the yield of

government bonds s considered as the discount rate. The tenure has been
considered taking into account the past long-term trend of employess’ average
remaining service life which reflects the average estimated term of the post-
employment benefit obligations.
Weighted average rate  The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the Company,
of increase in considering factors such as, the Company's past compensation revision trends and
compensation levels managemeant’s estimate of future salary increases.
Aftritean rale Aftrition rate considersd s the management’s estimate based on the past long-term
trend of amployes furnaver in the Company.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in indian rupees and there are ng other significant
Toreign defined benefit gratuity plans.

The company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards gratuity to the Infosys Employeas’ Gratuity Fund
Trust, In case of Infosys BPM and EdgeVerve, confributions are made o the Infosys BPM Employees’ Gratuity
Fund Trust and EdgeVerve Systems Limited Gratuity Fund Trusi, respectively. Trustees administer
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contributions made fo the frusts, As of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the plan assets have been
primarily invested in insurer managed funds.

Actual return on assets for the year ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was 514 million, $14 million and
511 million, respactively.

Sensitivity of significant assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit obligation:

(Dallars in mitlions)

impact from one percentage polnt Increase [ decrease in As at March 31, 2018
Discount rate 9
Weightad average rate of increase in compensalion levels 8

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumnptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the
valuation of the defined benefit obligation by one percentage, keeping all ather actuarial assumptions constant.
In practice. this is not probable, and changes in some of the assumgtions may be comelated.

Assumptions regarding future mortality axperience are sat in accordance with the published statisties by the
Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The Group expects o cantribute $20 million to the gratuity frusts during fiscal 2019,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(Dollars in millions]

Withan 1 year ar
1-2year 27
2-3year 23
3 -4 year M
4 -5 year 32
3-10 years 157

2.12.2 Superannuation

The Group contributed $27 million, 525 milion and $36 million to the superannuation pian during the vear
ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Superannuation contributions have been apportioned between cost of sales, selling and markeling expenses
and administrative expenses on the basis of direct employee cost as follows:
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[Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Cost of sales 24 22 32
Selling and marketing expenses 2 Z 3
Administrative expenses 1 1 1
27 25 36

2.12.3 Provident fund

Infosys has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the vield of the trust’s Investments over the administered
inferest rates on an annual basis. These administered rates are determined annually predominantly
considering the social rather than ecanamic factors and in most cases the actual returm samed by he company
has been higher in the pasl years. The acluary has provided a valuation for pravidént fund liabilities on the
basis of guidance issued by Actuarial Society of India and based on the belew provided sssumpiions there Is
no shortfall a3 at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively,

The details of fund and plan asset position are given below:

(Dallars in millions)

Asof
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Plan assets at period end. at fair vaiue To EBS
Fresent value of benefit obligation at period end T892 BBE

Aszzot recognized in balance sheet - -

The pian assets have been primatily invested in government securities.

Assumplions used in determining the present velue gbligation of the interes! rate guaraniee under the
Deterministic Approach:

As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Government of India (GO0 bend yield 7.5% BO%
Remaining term to maturity of portfalio 5.5 years G years
Expecied guaranteed interest rate B.6% BB
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The Group confributed 75 million, $62 million and $63 million to the provident fund during the year ended
March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectvely.

Prowvident fund contributions have been apportioned bebween cost of sales, sefling and marketing axpenses
and administrative expenses on the basis of direct employvee cost as follows:

{Dollars in millions}

Year ended March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Cost of sales BT &1 L]
Selling and marketing expenses 5 5
Adminisirative expenses 3 2
75 69 63

2.12.4 Employee benefit costs include:

(Baliars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
2018 27 2016
Salaries and bonus 1% 5910 5.501 5120
Defined contribution plans 40 ar 46
Definad banefit plans a4 74 70
6,034 5,612 5,236

(1) includes stock compensation expense of §12 milion, $17 millian and 57 milion for the year ended March
31, 2018, 2017 and 2076 respectively

(21 Included in the above is a reversal of slock compensation cost of 85 million for the year ended Mareh 31,
2018 fowards forfeiture of stock incentives granted to Or. Vishal Sikka upon his resignalion. Refer note
no. 2,14

The gratuity and provident plans are applicable anly to smployees drawing & salary in Indian rupess and there
are no other significant foreign defined benefit plans.

The employes benefit cost is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated staterment of

caomprehensive income;

{Dallars in millions)
Year ended March 31,
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2018 2017 2016
Cost of sales 5379 48987 4627
Selling and marketing expenses 423 205 403
Administrative expenses 230 220 206
6,034 LE12 5,236
2.13 Equity
Accounting policy
(iy Crdinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Incremantal costs directly attributable to the (ssuance of new ordinary
shares, share options and buyback are recognized as a deduction from edquity, net of any tax effects,

(i) Treasury Shares

When any antity within the Group purchases the company's ordinary shares, the consideration paid including
any directly atiributable incramental cost is presented as a deduction from total equity, untd they are cancelied,
sold or relssued. When tréasury shares aré sold or reissued subsequantly, the amount récelved is recognized
#% an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to! from share
pramium

Share capltal and share premium

The Company has only one class of shares referred 1o as equity shares having a par value of 23/ During the
three months ended June 30, 2015 the Company allotted 1.148,472,332 fully paid-up shares of face value 25/-
each pursuant to bonus issus approved by the shareholders throwgh postal balkol. For both the bonus (ssues,
banus share of one equity share for every equity share hald, and a stock dividend of one American Depositary
Share (ADS) for every ADS held. respactively. has been allotted. Consequentty, the ratio of equity shares
undeariying the ADSs held by an American Depositary Receipt holder remains unchanged. 10.601.955 and
11,288,514 shares wera held by controlled frust, as of March 31, 2078 and March 31, 2017, respactively,

The amount received in excess of the par value has besn classiied as share premium. Additionally,
share-based compensation recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is credited to
share premium. Amounts have been utilized for bonus issue from share premium acoount.

Retained eamings

Retained earmnings reprasent the armount of sccumulated sarmings of the Group.

Other Reserves
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The Special Economic Zone Re-invesimeant reserve has been created out of the profit of the eligible SEZ unit in
terms of the provisions of Sac 1044 (1)H) of Income Tax Act 1961, The resarve should be utilized by the
Company for acquiring new plant and machinery for the purpose aof its business in terms of the provisions of the
Sec 1044 (2) of the Income Tax Acl, 1961,

Other components of equlty

Other components of equily consist of currency transiation, re-measurement of net defined benefit
liability/assed, fair value changes of eguily instruments fair valued through olher comprehensive income,
changes an fair valuation of investments, net of taxes.

The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain an optimal capital structure so as o maximize shareholder value. in order to maintain or achieve an
oplimal capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or buy back lssued shares. As of March 31, 2018, the company had only one
class of equity shares and had no debt. Cansequent 1o the above capital structure, there are na externally
imposed capital requirements.

Share buyback

In line with the capital allocation policy, the Board, at s meeting on August 19, 2017, approved a praposal for
the Company to buyback its fully paid-up sguity shares of face value of 25/~ each from the eligible eguity
shareholders of the Company for an amount not exceeding 713,000 crare (52 billion). The sharekolders
approved the said proposal of buyback of Equity Shares through the postal ballot that concluded on October 7,
2017, The Buyback offer comprised a purchase of 113 043 478 eguity Shares aggregating 4.92% of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company at a price of #1,150 per equity share. The buyback was afferad to
all eligible eguity shareholders (including those who became equity shareholders as on the Record date by
cancelling American Depository Shares and withdrawing underlying eguity shares) of the Company as on the
Record Date {i.e. November 1, 2017} on a proportionate basis through the "Tender offer” route. The Company
conciuded the buyback procedures on December 27, 2017 and 113,043,478 equity shares were extinguished.
The company has ullized its securties premium and general reserve for the buyback of its shares. In
accardance with section 53 of the Indlan Companies Act, 2013, the company has created ‘Capital Redemption
Reserve’ of 59 million egual to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation fram genaral
reserve,

Bonus issue

The Board @ its meeating hald cn July 13, 2018 has considered, approved and recommended a bonus issue of
ana equity share for every eguity share held and a stock dividend of one Amencan Depositary Share (ADS ) for
every ADS held, as on a record date fo be determined. Consaguantly, the ratio of equity shares underlying the
ADSs held by an American Depositary Receipt holder would remain unchanged. The Board approved and
recommended the issue 1o celebrate 25th year of pubdic listing in India and to further increase the liguidity of its
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shares, The bonus issue of equity shares and ADSs will be subject to approval by the shareholders, and any
other applicable statulory and regulatory approvals. Conseguently, the authorized share capital will be
increased, subject to the approval of shareholders. Appropriate adjustments as necessary for the issue of
bonus shares / stock dividend as mentioned above fo Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) /Employee Stock
Qptions(ESCOPs) which have been granted to emplovees of the Company under its 2015 Stock incenlive
compensation Flan, shall be made.

The bonus shares once allotted shall rank parl passu in ali respects and carry the same rights as the existing
equity shareholders and the hoiders of the bonus shares shall be enfitled to participate in full, in any dividend
and other corporate action, recommended and declared after the new equity shares are allofted.

The rights of equity shareholders are set out below
2.13.1 Voting

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The squity shares represented by American
Depositary Shares (ADS) camy similar rights to voling and dividends as the other equity shares. Each ADS
represents one underlying equity share,

2.13.2 Dividends

Accounting Policy

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the company's Board of Directors.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The remittance of dividends cutside India is
governed by Indian law on foreign exchange and is subject to applicable distribution taxes. Dividend
distribution tax paid by subsidiaries may be reducad [ available as credit against dividend distribution tax
payable by Infosys Limited.

Effective from Financial Year 2018, the Company's poficy is to payout up to 70% of the free cash flow of the
comesponding Financial Year in such manner (including by way of dividend and / or share buyback) as may be
decided by the Board from time to time. subject to applicable lews and reguisite approvals, if any. Free cash
flow is defined as net cash provided by operating activities less capital expenditure as per the consciidated
staterment of cash fiows prepared under IFRS. Dividend payout includes dividend distribution tax.

The following table provides details of per share dividend recognized during fiscal 2018, 2017 and 20ME:
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Fiscal 2018 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2016

Dividend per Equity Share (T)
Interim dividend™ 13.00 11.00 10.00
Final dividend™ 14.75 14.25 14.79%

Dividend per Equity Share/ADS ()
Interim dividend™ 0.20 017 0.15
Final dividend™ 0.23 0.22 024

M Converted at the monthly exchange rate in the manth of declaration of dividend.
o Adjusted for June 17, 2015 bonus share issue.
' Represents inferim dividend for the respective fiscal year

' Represents final dividend for the preceding fiscal year

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of 320.504- per eqguily share (approximately $0.31 per
equity share) for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 and a special dividend of 310/ per equity share
{approximately $0.15 per equity share). Subseguent to the year ended March 31, 2018, based on the approval
from the sharehalders, the company has paid out 51,164 million comprising of the final dividend and special
dividend inchuding dividend distribution tax thereon.

2.13.3 Liguidation

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of shares shall be entitled 1o receive any of the
ramaining assats of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferantial
amounts exist currently, ather than the amounts held by irrevocable controlled trusts. The amount distributed
will be in proportion o the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders. For imevocable controlled trusts,
the eorpus wolld be setiied infaver of the beneflcaries.

2.13.4 Share options

There are no voting, dividend or liquidation rights to the holders of options issued under the company’s share
opfion plans,

2.14 Other income, net

Accounting policy

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, dividend income, gainfdoss on investments and
exchange gain/loss on forward and options contracts and on transiation of other assets and liabllities. Interest
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income is recognized using the effeclive mterest method. Dividend income is recognized when the right to
recelve payment |s established.

Functional currency and presentation currency

The functional currency of infosys, infosys BPM, EdgeVerve, Skava and controlled trusts is the Indian rupee.
The functional currencies for foreign subsidiaries are their respective local cumencies. These financial
statements are presented in LS. dollars {rounded off to the nearest million) to facilitate the investors” ability to
evaiuate Infosys’ performance and financial position in comparison to similar companies domicited in other
geographic locations,

Transactions and translations

Forsign-currency denominated monetary assels and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional
currency at exchange rates in effect at the belance sheet dale, The gains or kosses resulting from such
translations are included in the statement of comprehensive income, Mon-monetary assets and non-manetary
liabiliies dencminated in a forelgn currency and measured at falr value are translated at the exchange rate
prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-mwonetary assets and non-monetary labilites
denominaled in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are transiated at the sxchange rate
prevalent at the date of fransaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign curmency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the period in which the fransaction is settled. Revenue. expense and cash-flow items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange
rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

The translation of financial statements of the entities of the group from functional cumancy to the presentation
culrency is performed for aseats and labilities using the exchange rate in effect at the balance shesat date and
for revenue, expense and cash-flow tems using the average exchange rate for the respective periods. The
gains or bosses resulting from such franslation are included in currency translation reserves under other
compenents of eguity. When a subsidiary is disposed of, in full, the relevant amount is transferred o the
statement of comprehensive income. However, when a change in the parent's ownership does not result in
loss of control of & subsidiary, such changes are recorded through equity.

Goadwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and

liabilitias of the foreign entity and translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date,

Govarnmant grants
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The Group recognizes government grants onfy when there & reasonable assurance that the conditions
attached {o them shall be complied with, and the grants will be received. Govemment grants related to assels
are treated as defarred income and are recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income on a systematic

and rational basis over the wseful life of the asset. Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a

systematic basis in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods necessary to match them with the

redated costs which they are intended to compensate.

Oiher income consists of the following:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 017 2016
interast income on financial assats carred at amoftized cost 260 352 402
Interest income en financial assets fair valued through other
comprehensive ncoms 106 28 -
Dividend income on investments carried at fair valus through
profit or loss 1 4 10
Gain ! (loss) on investments carmed at fair value through profit
or loss 35 18 -
Exchange gains ! {losses) on forward and options contracts - 89 4
Exchange galns / (losses) on translation of other assets and
liabilities 36 (54} 21
Reduction in fair value of Diepasal Group held for sale (refer
note no, 2.9) (18} 2 o
Others 71 2z ]

435 459 46

2.15 Leases

Accounting policy

Leases under which the group assumes substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as

finance leases. \When acguired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease

payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease paymenis under operaling leases are

recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in the statement of comprahensive income aver the lease

termn.
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The Group has varous operating leases, mainly for office buildings, that are renewable on a periodic basis,

Rental expanse for cperating leases was 582 miflion, 573 million and 355 million for fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016,

respectively.

The schedule of future minimum rental payments in respect of non-canceliable ocperating leases is set out

below:
{Dedlars in millions)
As of
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Within one year of the balance sheet date 70 1
Due in & period between one year and five years 213 191
Due after five years 134 114

A rnajonty of the group's operating lease arrangements extend up to a maximum of ten years from thelr
respective dates of inception. and relate to rented premises. Some of thesa lease agreements contain a price
wscalation clause,

2.16 Employees' Stock Option Plans (ESOP)

Accounting policy

The Group recognizes compensation expensa relaling to share-based paymants in net profit using fair-value in
accordanice with IFRS 2, Share-Based Payment, The estimated fair value of awands is charged to intomea on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service pericd far each separately vesting portion of the award as if the
award was in-substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase to share premium.

Amendment to IFRS 2:

Effective April 1, 2017, the Group has early adopted amendment to IFRS 2 which provides specific guidance to
measurement of cash-setlled awards, modification of cash-settied awards and awards that include a net
settlement feature in respect of withholding taxes. The adoption of the amendment did nat have any material
affact on the consolidated financial statements.

2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan {formerdy 2011 RSU Plan) (the 2015 Plan): On March 31, 2018,
pursuant to the approval by the shareholders through postal ballot, the Board has been authorized fo introduce,
affer, issue and allot share-based incentives to eligible employees of the Company and is subsidiaries under
the 2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the 2015 Plan). The maximum number of shares under the 2015
plan shall not exceed 24,038,883 eguity shares (this includes 11,223 576 equity shares which are held by the
trust towards the 2011 Plan as &t March 31, 2018}, Qut of this 17,038,883 equity shares will be issued as REUs
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at par value and 7,000,000 equity shares will be isswed as stock options at market price on the date of the grant.

Thess instruments will generally vest over a pericd of 4 years and the Company expects to grant the
instrurmnents under the 2015 Plan over the period of 4 to 7 years.

Controlled trust holds 10,801 956 and 11,289,514 shares as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017
respectively under the 2015 plan, out of which 100,000 equity shares have been earmarked for wellare

activities of the employees.

The following is the summary of grants made during fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2016 under the 2015 Plan:

Particulars Fiscal 2018 Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2018
RsU
Salil Parekh, CED and MD - Refer Note T below 113,024 - -
LB Pravin Rao. COC and WTD 27,250 - -
Dr.Vishal Sikka® 270,224 120,700 124,061
Other KMP™" 271,100 248 250 -
Employees other than KMP 1.598.0140 2,507 740 -
2280 608 2,874,650 124,061
ESOP
UB Pravin Rao. COO and WTD 43,000 - -
D, Vishal Sikka* 330,525 - -
Qther KME*" 44,450 502,550 =
Employees other than KMP 73,800 703,300 -
491,575 1,205,850 -
Incentlve units- cash settled
Cither employass 50,040 112,210 -
50,040 112,210 -
Total grants 2822235 4,192,750 124 061

* Upen Dr. Vishal Sikka's resignalion from the roles of the company, the unvested RSUs and ESOFs have
been forfeited
*  Refer note 219 for details on resignation of certain KMPs

Note:

301/340



1. Stock incentives granted to Salil Parekh, CEQ and MD

Pursuant fo the approval of the shareholders through a postal ballot on February 20, 2018, Salll Parekh (CED
& MD) is efigible to receive under the 2015 Plan:

af an annual grant of RSUs of fair value ¥3.25 crore (approximately 50.5 milion) which will vest over time in 3
equal annual instalimenis upon campletion of each year of service from the respechive grant date

b} & one-time grant of RSUs of fair value #3.75 crore (approximately 51.5 millior) which will vest aver ime in 2
equal annual instalimenis upen completion of each year of senice from the grant date and

) annual grant of performance based B3Us of fair value ¥13 crore (approximately 52 million) wivich will vest
after completion of three years the first of which concludes on March 31, 2021, subject to achieverment of
performance targeats sef by the Board or its committes,

The Board based on the recommendations of the Nominafion and Remunaralion commifiee approved on
February 27, 2018, the annual lime based grant for fiscal 2018 of 28,256 RSUs and the one-fime time based
grant of 84, 768 R5Us. The grants were made effective February 27, 2018.

Thouwgh the annual time based grands for the remaining employment tem ending on January 1. 2023 have not
been granted as of March 31, 2078, since the service commencement dale precedes the grant dale, the
company has recorged employment sfock compensalion expense in accordance with IFRS 2, Share based

payments.

The REUs and stock options would vest generally over a period of 4 years and shall be exercisable within the
period as approved by the Commitiee. The exercise price of the REUs will be equal o the par value of the
shares and the exercise price of the siock opticns would be the market price as an the date of grant

Break-up of employee stock compensation expense

{Dallars in milllons)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2047 2016
Granted to:
AT = i) & 1
Employeas other than KMP 15 12 -
Total 13 17 1
Cash selfled siock compensation expense included in the
abave 1 = =
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{1} Included a reversal of stock compensation cast of 85 milian for flscal 2078, towards farfeiture of stock

incentives granted fo Dr. Vishal Sikka upon his resignation.

The activity in the 2015 Plan for equity-setiied share based payment transaclion during the year ended March

31, 2018 is set out below:

Year ended March 31, 2018
Waelghted
average
Shares arlsing axerclise
out of options price($)
2015 Plan -RSU

Cutstanding at the beginning* 2,981,373 007
Grantad 2,280,608 008
Exercised 648,217 0.or
Forfeited and expired 843 355 0.07
CQutstanding at the end 3,750,409 0.07
Exercicable at the end 24,205 0.07

2015 Plan-ESOP
Qutstanding at the beginning 1.197 650 18.26
Granted 491 575 14.62
Exercised 52412 15.26
Farfeited and expired 655 900 14,84
Outstanding at the end 966,913 15.23
Exercisable at the end 196,912 15.26

The activity in tha 2015 Plan for equity-settled share based payment fransaction during the year ended March

3, 2017 is set out below:

Year ended March 31, 2017
Walghted
average
Shares arising axarcise
out of opticns price($)
2015 Plan -RsU
Cutstanding at the beginning* 221,508 0.07
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Granted 2874690 ao7
Forfeited and expired 100,760 .07
Exgrcised 34.082 -
Outstanding at the end 2,961,373 0.07
Exsrcisable at the end - -
2015 Plan -ESOP

Qutstanding at the beginning = -
Granted 1,205,850 15.26
Farfeited and sxpired &.200 15.26
Exercised - -
Outstanding at the end 1,197 650 15.26

Exercisable at the end

As at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, 111,757 and 106,245 incentive units were autslanding (net of

farfeitures).

The activity in the 2015 Plan for equity-settied share based payment transaction during the year ended March

31, 2016 s sef out below:

Year ended March 31, 2016

Shares arising
out of options  exercise price()

Weighted
average

2015 Plan - RSU

Outstanding at the beginning® 108 268 Q.07
Granted 124,061 o.o7
Forfeited and expired - -
Exercised® 10,824 0.07
Dutstanding at the end 221,505 0.o7
Exercisable at the end - -

N Adjusted for bonus issue. (Refer to note 2,13).

During the vear ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, the weighted average share price
of opticns exercised under the 2015 Plan on the date of exercise was $15.48, $16.10 and $16, respectively

The fallowing table summarizes information about equity settied RSUs and ESOPs outstanding as of March 31,

2018:
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Options outstanding
Waeighted

AVErage Walghted

Mo. of shares remaining average

arising out  contractual exerciss

Range of exarcise prices per share (5} of options life price (%)
2015 Plan: ADS and |ES

0-0.08 (REU) 3,750,408 1.88 0.07

13 - 17 (ESOP) 285913 £.E0 15.23

4,17 322 2.57 318

The following table summarizes information about equity settled RSUs and ESOPs outstanding as at March 31,

207
Options outstanding
Weighted
Mo. of avarage Waighted
shares remaining average
arising out  contractual exercise
Range of exercise prices per share (§) of options life price {5)
2015 Plan:
0-0.07 (RSU) 2.8961,373 1.88 0.o7
14 - 16 (ESOP) 1.197.850 708 1583
4,159,023 338 4.61

The fair value of each equity setfled RELU is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-hMerton

model with the following assumptions:

Particulars For options granted in
Fiscal
Fiscal 2018-Equity Fiscal

201 8-Equity shares 2018 Fiscal 2018

Ehares-REU ESOP -ADS-RSU -ADS-ESOP
Weighted average share price (¥} / (3= ADS) 1,144 923 1651 14.65
Exercise price (T ($- ADS) 500 918 0.08 14.67
Expected volatility {%) 20-25 25-28 21-26 25-31
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Expected life of the option (years) i-4 3-7 i-4 3-7
Expecied dividends (%) 278 278 274 274
Risk-free interest rate (%) -7 &-7 -2 1-2
Weighted average fair value as on grant date (3) / (5-
ADS) 1,066 254 1547 283
Particulars For options granted in
Fiscal
Fiscal 2017-Equity Fiscal

2017-Equity shares 2017 Fiscal 2017

Shares-RSU ESOP -ADS-RSU -ADS-ES0P
Weighted averags share price (%) | [5- ADS) 1,087 989 1571 15.26
Exercise price (T (- ADS) 5.00 2] 0.07 15.26
Expecied volatility (%) 24-28 27-29 26-29 27-31
Expected life of the option (years) 1-4 3-7 1-4 3-7
Expected dividends (%) aar 237 228 228
Risk-free interest rate (%) B-7 6-7 1-2 1-2
Weighted average fair value as on grant date (¥1/ (5-
ADS) 1.002 285 14 84 346

The expected term of the RSU ESOR is estimated based on the vesting term and contractual femm of the RSU
{ ESOP, as well as expected exercise behavior of the employes who receives the RSU J ES0OP. Expacied
valatility during the expected term of the RSU / ESOP is based on historical volalility of the abserved market
prices of tha company's publicly traded equity shares during a period equivalent to the expected termn of the
R3U / ESCP.

247 Income taxes

Accounting policy

Income tax expense comprises cument and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is
recognized at the amount expectad to be paid to of recoverad from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differances arising betwaen the tax bases of assets and
lisbdities and their carryireg amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax anses
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from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assat or liahility in & transaction that is not a business comkbination
and affecis neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assels are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
bensfit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the vears in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recoverad or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates
on deferred income tax assets and liabilities & recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the
enactment or the substantive enactment date, A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that futere taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary diferences and tax
loszes can be utilized. Defered income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
and branches where [t is expected that the eamings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future. The group offsels current tax assels and current tax liabilithes, whese i has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to saftle on & net basis, or to
realize the assel and settie the liability simultanecusly. Tax benefits of deductions eamed on exercise of
employee share oplions in excess of compensation charged to income are credited fo share premium.,

Income tax expensa in the consalidated statement of comprahensive incoma comprises:

(Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31,
018 17 2016
Current taxes
Darmestic taxes 721 B1& B42
Foreign taxes {12} 208 167
708 842 209
Daferred taxes
Domestic taxes {80} (1) 3
Foreign faxes 28 {71 13
{52} (B} (10}
Income tax expense B5T 824 799

During the three months ended December 31, 2017, the Company has concluded an Advance Pricing
Agresment (CAPA™) with the US Intemal Revenue Service ("IRE") for the US branch covering fiscal years 2011
to 2021, Under tha APA, the Company and the IRES have agreed on the methedology to allocate revenues and
compute the taxable income of the Company's LS Branch operations.
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in accordance with the APA. the company has reversed income tax expense provision of 5225 million. This
comprises reversal of current tax expense of 3253 mdlion, reversal of $21 million on account of deferred tax
assels pertaining to the temporary differences which are no longer required and a deferred tax liability of $7
million pertaining to Branch profit tax for the three months ended December 31, 2017 on aceount of conclusion
of APA. In line with the ARPA, the Company has to pay an amount of approximately $233 milkon due o the
difference between the laxes payable for prior periods as per the APA and the actual laxes paid for such
periods. The company has paid $138 miltion till date.

Additionally, income tax axpense for the yvear ended March 31, 2MB, 2017 and 2016 includes reversals (met of
provisions) af $45 million, $23 millicn and 347 millkon, respectively, pertaining to prior periods on account of
adjudication of certain disputed matters in favor of the company across various jurisdictions,

The "Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (H.R. 1} was signed info law on December 22, 2017 ('US Tax Reforms”). The US

tax reforms has reduced federal fax rates from 35% to 21% effective January 1. 2018 amongst other measures.

Dwring the year andad March 31, 2018, the US tax reforms has resulted in a positive impact of 524 million on
account of credits pertaining to deferred tax liabilities on branch profit

Entire deferred income tax, except for a credit of $24 millien (on account of US Tax Reforms exptained above),
for the year ended March 31, 2018, relates to ongination and reversal of temporary differences. Entire deferred
income tax for fiscal 2017 and 2016 relates to origination and reversal of temporary differences,

During fiscal 2018, a current tax charge of $2 milion has been recorded in other comprehansive income
pertaining to remeasurement of definad benefit plan asset,

During fiscal 2017 and 2016, a current tax credit of 31 million and Nil has been recorded in other
comprehensive income pertaining 1o remeasurement of defined banefit plan asset,

During fiscal 2017, on account of adoplion of IFRS 9. there was a reversal of deferred tax Bability of 51 million
pertaining to unrealized gains on quoted dabt securities.

Dwring fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2017, a reversal of net deferred tax lability of 32 million and a deferred tax hability
of 52 millkon, respectively has been recorded in other comprehensive income pertaining to unrealized gains on
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges.

The company, being a resident in India as per the provisions of the Income Tax Acl, 1961, is required to pay
taxes in India on the global income in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of the Indian Income Tax Act,
1861, which is reflacted as domestic taxes, The geographical segment disclosures on revenue in note 2.20.2
are based on the localion of cusiomers and do not reflect the gecgraphies where the actual delivery ar
revenue-related efforts ccour. The income on which domestic taxes are imposed are not resfricted fo the
income generaied from the “india” gecgraphic segment, As such, amounts applicable to domestic income
taxes and foreign income taxes will not necessarily comelate to the proportion of revenue generated from India
and other geographical segments as per the geographic segment disclosure set forth in note 2.20.2
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A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applving the statutory inrcome tax rate
to the income before income taxes is summarnzed below:

(Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2017 2016
Profit before income taxes 3,143 2.974 2.851
Enacted tax rates in India 34 B1% 34E1% 34.61%
Computed expected lax expense 1.088 1.028 287
Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes {321} (295) {26B8)
Overseas faxss 109 112 109
Tax provision (reversals) {253} (233 471
Effect of differential overseas tax rales 8 10 1
Effect of exempt non-cperating Income {10} (10} (13
Effect of unrecognized deferred tax assels 29 14 9
Effect of non-deductible expensas g 4 30
Eranch profit tax {nat of credits) (32} - -
Subsidiary dividend distribution tax 27 - -
Others 3 () (9
Income tax expense 657 B34 799

Cther incame for year ended March 31, 2018, inciudes interest on income tax refund of $41 mallian.

The foreign tax expense is due to income taxes payable overseas, principally in the United States. In India, the
company has benefited from certaln tax incentives that the Govemment of India had provided for export of
softwars from the units registersd under the Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 (BEZ). SEZ units which began
the pravision of services on or after April 1, 2005 are eligible for a deduction of 100 % of profils or gains derived
from the export of services for the first five years from the financial year in which the unit commenced the
provision of services and S0% of such profits or gains for a further five vears. Up to 50% of such profits or gains
iz also available for a further five years subject to creation of a Special Econamic Zone Re-investment Reserve
out of the profit of the eligible SEZ units and utilization of such reserve by the Company for acguinng new plant
and machinery for the purpose of its business as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861, (Refer to
Ciher Resarves under note 2,13 Equity).

A3 a result of these tax incentives, a portion of the company's pre-tax income has not been subject to tax in
recent years. These tax incentives resulted in a decrease In our income tax expense of 3321 milion, $205
milficn and $268 million for the year ended March 21, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, compared 1o the tax
amounts that we estimate we would have been required o pay if these incantives had not been available, The
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per share effect of these tax incentives computed based on both basic and diluted weighted average number of

equity shares for the yvear ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and March 2016 was 5014, $0.13 and 30.12,

respectively.

infosys s subject o a 15% Branch Profit Tax (BPT} in the LLS. to the extent ite U.S. branch's net profit duning
the year is greater than the increase in the net assets of the U.S, branch during the year, computed in
accordance with the Internal Revenue Code. As of March 31, 2018, Infosys' U5, branch net assets amounted
to approximately 5772 million. During the year ended March 31, 2018 an additional deferred tax lEability has
been crealed for branch profit fax amounting to 37 milllon on account of conclusion of APA explalned abaove.
Further, on account of US tax Reforms, the company has a credit of 524 million pertaining to Branch Profit Tax
for year ended March 31, 2018. The company has aiso reversed $8 million of Branch profit tax during the year
ended March 31, 20158 towards current taxes. As of March 31, 2018, the Company has a deferred tax Bability
for branch profit tax of 325 miflion {net of credits), as the Company estimates that these branch profits are
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future,

Dwring the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company received §130 million as dividend from Infosys BPM, its
majarty cwned subsidiary. Dividend distribution tax paid by the subsidiary on such dividend has been reduced
as credit against dividend distribution tax payvabée by Infosys. Accordingty, the group has recorded a charge of
327 million as incorne tax expense dunng the yvear ended March 31, 201B.

Deferred income Lax labilities have nol been recognized on temporary differences amounting to 5774 million
and $519 million as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively, associated with investments in
subsidiaries and branchels as it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
Future,

Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized on accumulated losses of $287 million and $303 milion
as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively, as it is probable that future taxable profit will be not
available against which the unused tax losses can be uliized in the foresesable fulure, The balance as of
March 31, 2018 excludes the accumulated losses of disposal groups held for sale. (Refer note 2.9)

The following table provides details of expiration of unused tax losses:

Year in USD millfons
2019 14
2020 37
2021 12
2022 21
2023 39
Theraafter 174
Total 297
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The following table provides the details of income fax assete and income tax labdites as of March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017

As ol
March 31, March 31,
2018 2047
Income tax assets 831 881
Current income tax liahdities (314} (599}
Met current income tax assets | (llabilities) at the end B17 282

The gross movement in the current income tax asset [ (kability) for fiscal 2018, 2017 and 2018 is as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Year ended March 31,

2018 2017 2016
Net current income tax asset ! (liability) at the beginning 282 274 203
Translation differences 05} & 12}
Income tax paid 1.058 843 anz
Current income tax expense (Refer to Note 2.17) (700 1842) {80
Income tax on other comprehensive ncome 121 1 -
Raclassified under assets held for 2ale {refer nate no 2.9) 5} - =
Net current income tax asset | (liabllity) at the end 617 282 274

The movement in gross deferred income lax assels and Habilities (before set off) for fiscal 2015 ks as follows:

{Dallars in milliors)

Carrying
value as  Changes
of through Changes Reclassified Carrying
Aprik 1, profit  through as Held for  Translation value as of
2017  and loss ocl Sale difference March 31, 2018
Deferred income tax
assets
Property, plant and
equipment 21 12 = - - a3
Computer software G (&) - - - -
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Others (11} 4 2 - 1 ()

The movemnent in gross deferred income tax assets and liabilities (before set off) for fiscal 2017 is as follows:

{Dollars in millions)

Post sales client support 12 3 - - 15
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- - 1 {50}

* included in others is the impact on adopfion of IFRS 9 of $1 million

The movement in gross defarred income tax assats and liabilites (before set off) for fiscal 2016 is as follows:

{Dellars in millions)
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Intangible asset {23) T = (20] o (38)
Branch profit tax {51) - - - - {51}
Dihers o 5} (1} - - ]

(T6) 2 1) (20} - {35)

(Dallars in miflions

As of
March 31, 2018 March 3, 2017
Deferred income tax assets after sef off 196 B3
Deferred incorme tax liabilites after sed off (82} {32)

Deferred Income tax assets and deferred ncome tax liabdities have been offsel wherever the group has a
legally enforceable right to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and where the
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

In assessing the realzability of deferred income tax assets, management considers whether some portion or all
of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets s
dependent upon the generation of future taxalde income during the periods in which the temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the schedubed reversals of deferred income fax kabilities,
projecied future taxable imcome and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the pericds in which the defered
incaome tax assets are deductible, management belisves that the group will realize the benefits of those
deductible diferances. The amount of the deferred incoms tax assets considerad realizable, however, could ba
reduced in the near {ferm if estimates of fulure taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

The credit relating to temporary differences during the year ended March 31, 2018 are primarily on account of
property plant and equipment and trade receivables partially affset by accrued compensation 1o employess.
The charge relating to temparary differences during fiscal 2017 are primarily on account of property plant and
equipment and compensaled absences parially offset by trade receivables and post sales client support, The
credits relating fo temporary differences during fiscal 2016 are primarily on account of accrued compensation
to employees and compansated absences partiafly offset by reversal of credits pertaining to properiy piant and
equipment and trade receivables.

As at March 31, 2018, claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts from the Income tax authorities
amounted to £3,041 crore (5467 million). These matters are pending before various Appellate Authorties and
the management including its tax advisors expect that ifs position will likely be upheld on ulimate resolution
and will ot have a material adverse effect on the Group's fnancial position and results of aperations.
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Amcunt paid to statutory authorities against the above tax claims amountad to 5,540 crore {31,003 millian)

Az at March 31, 2017, claims against the Group not acknowledged as debis from the Income tax authorities
amounted to 6,378 crore ($984 million). Amount paid to statutory authorities against this amounted to 34 682
crore {3722 miflion).

2.18 Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per equity share

Accounting policy

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable o the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also
the weighted average number of aquity shares that could have baen issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the

equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the autstanding equity shares).

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the baginning of the period, unbass issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently far sach period prasented,

The numbsar of aguity shares and potentially dilutive equity sharas are adjusted retraspectively for all periads
preséented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the financial statements by the Board of Directors,

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted eamings per
ecjuity share:

Year anded March 31,
2018 2017 2016
Basic eamings per equity share - weighted average number of
equity shares cutstanding ' 2,255,333 322 T3R5 B33 447 2 285616 160
Effact of dilutive commaon aquivalant shares - share options
autstanding 2241548 757,298 102,74

Dilluted eamings per equity share - weighled average number
of equity shares and comman equivalent shares cutstanding 2,257 573,870 2,286,396.745 2285 718894

W axcludes freasury shares
B adjusfed for bonus shares, wherever appiicable Refer fo note 2.13
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Fer the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, 67,238 and 112,190 number of opfions lo purchase

equity shares, respectively, had an antl-dilutive effect

For the year ended March 31, 2016, there ware no outstanding opfions to purchase equity shares which had an
anti-dilutive effect

2.19 Related party transactions

List of subsidiaries:
Particulars Country Holding as of

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Infosys Technologies (China) Co, Limited (Infosys Chinal China 100% 1000,
Infasys Technologies S, de R. L. da C. V. {Infosys Maxico) Maxico 100% 100%
infasys Technologies (Sweden] AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden 100% 100%
Infasys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (nfosys  China 100% 100%
Shanghai)
Infasys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA, (Infosys Brasi) Brazil 100% 100%
Infasys Mova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova) (133 100% 100%
EdgeVerye Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India 100%, 100%
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH" Ausiria 100% 100%
Skava Systems Pyt Lid. (Skava Syslems) India 1000 100%
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) Us. 100% 100%
Infosys Chile Spa’™ Chile - -
Infasys Arabia Limited™ Saudi 700 -

Arabia
Infosys Americas Inc., {infosys Americas] us 1005 100%
Infasys Technologies [Ausiralia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Ausiralia 100% 100%:
Austratia)™
Infosys Fublic Services, Inc. USA {Infosys Public Services) s 100%: 100%
Infasys Canads Public Services Lid, ™% Canada - -
Infosys BPM Limited (formerty Infosys BPG Limited) India 98.98% 98 98%
Infasys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.0.” Czech 98.98% 99.98%
Republic

Infasys Poland, Sp z oo Poland 59 gan; g gan,
Infasys MeCamish Systems LLC ™ us, 99,98% 99,95%
Portland Group Pty Lig™ Ausiralia 95 98% 95.98%,
Infasys BPO Americas LLC.™ s, 95.98% 95.98%
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Ledestone Management Consultants Ine. ™ us. 100% 100%

Lodestone Management Consultants Cao.. Lid.™

infy Consulting B¢ The 100% 100%

Lodestone Management Cansultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Fortugal 100% 100%
Lda. ™

Lodestone Augmentis AG /2" Switzerland . .

Infasys Consulting Lida '™ Brazil 99.99% 99.90%

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Brilliant Basics (MENA) DMCC"™ Dubai 100% -
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Infosys Middle East FZ LLC™ Drubai 100% -

M Wholly-owned subsidiary of infosys Limited

# Incorporated effective November 20, 2017

® Subsidiary of Infosys Limited

# Under liquidation

o Wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, inc.

@ Liguidated sffective May 8, 2007

T Wholly owned subsidiarny of Infosys BPM.

“ Wholly owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formery Lodestane Holding AG)

W guidated effective December 21, 2016

M wholly owned subsidiany of Infosys Consulting AG (formeny Lodestons Managemen! Consuttants AG)

AN |iguidated effective October 5, 2018

M3 pdaiarity owned and confroded subsidlanes of Infosys Consuling Haolding AG (farmetly Lodestone
Hoilding AG)

M Wholly owned subsidiary of Panaya ine.

M guidated effective November 16, 2016

M Liquidated effective November 8, 2017

% Wholly owned subsidiary of Noah

M | iauidated effective December 20, 2017

M On September 8 2017, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting inferests fn Briliant Basics Holdings
Limited., UK

8 Whally-owned subsidiary of Briliant Basics Holding Limited,

A Whally-owned subsidiary of infasys Cansulting Pte Lid

During the vear ended March 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, Infosys Consultng AG (formerly Lodestone
Management Consultants AG) paid a dividend of Ni, 34 milion and 52 mallion, respectively, to its holding
company, Lodestons Hodding AG and the tax on such dividend received was Nil.

During the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, Infy Consulting Company Ltd. (formery Lodestone

Management Consultants Ltd.) paid a dividend of 33 million and 35 miflion, respectively, to Its holding company,

Lodestone Holding AG and the tax on such dividend recaived was Mil.

Cwring the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company received 5130 million as dividend from Infosys BFM,
Dividend distribution tax paid by the subsidiary on such dividend has been reduced as credit against dividend
distribution tax payable by Infosys. Accordingly, the group has recorded a charge of 527 million as income tax
expense during the year ended March 31, 2018,

During the yvear ended March 31, 2018, 3.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L. paid & dividend of $1 millicn. to its
holding company, infosys Consulting Holding AG and the tax on such dividend received was Nil.
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Infasys has provided guaramies for performanes of ceriain coniracts entered inte by s subsidiaries,

List of associates:
Particulars Country Holding as of

March 34, 2018 March 31, 2047
DWA Nova LLC (DWaA Nova) ' Us - 16%

" Associate of Infosys Nova, During the year ended March 31, 2015, Infosys Nova acquired 20% of the
egquity interests in DWA Nova LLC for @ cash consideration of 515 million. The Company made this
investment to form & new company along with Dream Works Animation (DWA). Az of March 31, 2017,
Infasys Nova held 18% of the equily interest in DWA Nova LLC. Share of associate's loss for the vear
ended March 31, 2018 and March 371, 2017 includes an impalment loss of 311 milion and §3 miltian,
respectively, As of Mareh 37, 2078 the Company has written down the entire camying value of the
investment in ts associate DWA Nove LLC. DWA Nova LLC has been figuidated affeciive November 17,
2017

List of other related parties:

Particulars Country  Nature of relationship

Infosys Limited Employess’ Gratuity Fund Trust Indlia Paost-employment banefit plan of Infosys
Infosys Limited Employees' Providant Fund Trust Inclia Post-employment banefit plan of Infosys
Infasys Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund

Trust Indlia

Infosys BEM Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund

Trust (formerly Infosys PO Limited Emplayees’

Superannuation Fund Trust) Indiz

Infosys BPM Limited Employvess’ Gratuity Fund Trust

(formerly Infosys BFO Limited Emplayees’ Gratuity

Past-employrnent benefit plan of Infosys

Post-employment banefit plan of Infosys
BPM

Post-employment benefit plan of infosys

=iz )
Fund Trust) India
Edgelferve Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund

: Fost-emplayment benefit plan of EdgeVerve

Trust India
EdaeVerve Systems Limited Employees

Past-employment benafit plan of EdgeVerve
Superannuation Fund Trust India
Infosys Employees’ Welfare Trust India Coniralled Trust
Infusys Employee Benefits Trust Indias Contralied Trust
Infosys Science Foundation India Controlled Trust
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Refer fo Note 2,12 for information on transactions relating to the post-employment benefit plans menticned
above.

Transactions with key management personnel

Salil Parekh appointed as Chief Execulive Officer and Managing Director effective January 2, 2018. The
appaintment is for a ferm of 5 years with effect from January 2, 2018 o Januery 1, 2023 and the remuneration
is approved by shareholders through postal baliot dated February 20, 2018,

IJ. B. Pravin Rao, Chief Operating officer appainted as inferim-Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
affective August 18, 2017, Subseguanty he stepped down as the interim CEC and Managing Direclor affective
January 2, 2018 and will continue as Chief Operating Cfficer and a whaole-time director of the Company.

Dr. Vishai Sikka resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Dérector effective August 18, 2017 and as
Executive Viee Chairman eflective August 24, 2017

The table balow describes the compensation o key management personnel which comprises direclors and
executive officers under [AS 24

[Dallars in millicns)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2018 2017 2016
Salaries and other employee benefits to whaole-time direciors
and executive officers’ 7 1A 8 12 15
Commission and other benefits to non-executive / independent
diractors 2 2 2
Total 10 14 17

W fncludes reversal of employee stock compensafion expense of 32 milion for the year ended March 31,
2018 and employee stock compensation expense of, 35 milllon and 1 million for the pear ended March
31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respeciivaly towards key managerial peracnns).

B Year ended March 31, 2097 includes $0.87 milion payable under severance agreement to David
Kennedy, who stepped down as General counsel and Chiel compliance officer with effect from
December 31, 2016,

B year ended March 31, 2076 includes §2.58 million payable under severance agreement fo Rajiv Bansal
wha stepped down as Chvel Einancial officer with effect from Octaber 12, 2015

" On December 2, 2017, the Board appoinfed Salil Parekh as the Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director of the Company with effect from Januvary 2, 2078, The appoirdment for & term of 5 years with
effect from January 2, 2018 fo January 1, 2023 and the remuneration is spproved by shareholders
through postal baliof which will get concluded on February 20, 2078
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® Included a reversal of stock compensation cost of $5 milllan for the year ended March 31, 2018 towards
forfeifure of stock incentives granted to Dr. Vishal Sikka upon his resignation. (Refer o note 2 16)

2,20 Begment reporting

IFRS & establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information albout operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services geographic areas, and major customers, The
Group's operations predominantly relale lo providing end-io-end business solubons to enable dlents to
enhance business perfarmance. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group reorganized some of its
sagments to enhance &xecutive cusiomer relationships, improve focus of sales investments and increase
management oversight. Conseguent to the internal recrganization, Growth Markets (GMU) comprising
businesses in APAC (Asia Pacificy and Africa have been subsumed across the other verticals and businesses
in India, Japan and China are run as standalone regional business units and Infosys Public services (IPS) |3
reviewed separately by the Chief Operating Decislon Maker (CODM). Further, the erstwhile manufacturing
segment is now being reviewed as Hi-Tech, Manufacturing and others included in ECS. Consequent to the
internal reorganizations. there were changes effected in the reporiable business segments based on the
"management approach” as defined in IFRS & Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Group's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments and geographic segments. Accordingly, information has been presented both along business
segments and geographic segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements are consistently applied o record revenue and expanditure in individual segments, and are as set

out in the accounting policies.

Business segments of the Group are primanly businesses in Financial Services (FS), businesses in
Blanufacturing (MFG), businesses in Retall, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics (RCL), businesses in the
Energy & utilities, Communication and Services (ECS), businesses in Hi-Tech (Hi-Tech), businesses in Life
Sciences, Healthcare and Insurance (HILIFE) and all other segrments, The FS reporiable segment has been
aggregated to include the Financial Services operating segment and the Finacle operating segment because of
the similarity of the economic characteristics. Al other segments represent the operating segments of
buginasses in India, Japan and China and IPS. Geographic segmeantation is based on business sourced from
that gecgraphic region and delivered from bolth onsite and off-shore locations, North America comprises the
United States of America, Canada and Mexico, Europe includes continental Eurcpe (both the east and the
west), lreland and the United Kingdom, and the Rest of the World comprising all other places except those
mentioned above and india.

Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to segments are categorized based on items that are
individually identifiable to that segment. Revenue for “all other segments”™ represents revenue generated by
IFS and revenue genarated from customers located in India, Japan and China, Allocated expenses of
segments inciude expenses Incwrred for rendering services from the Group's offshore software development
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centers and onsite expenses, which are categorized in relation to the assccisied tumover of the segment.
Certain expenses such as depreciation, which form a significant componant of total axpenses, are mol
specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying asssts are used interchangeably. Management
belisves that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and expenses, and
accordingty these expenses are separatedy disclosed as "unallocated” and adjusted against the tatal income of
the Group.

Azszets and liabilities used In the Group's business are nat identified to any of the reportable segments, as
these are used interchangeably betveen segments_ Management befieves that it is currently not practicable to
pravide segment disclosures relating o tolal assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the
Bvailable datas is cnerous.

Geographical information on revenue and business segment revenue information is collated based on
individual customers invoiced of in rekation to which the revenue is otherwise recognized.

2.20.1 Business segments

[Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2018 F5 MFG ECS RCL HILIFE Hi-Tech All other segments Total
Revenues 2891 1,194 2,599 1,722 1,438 784 311 10,939
Identifiable operating expenses 1470 B41 1305 B28  T13 416 180 5553
Allocated expenses B13 271 589 300 326 178 71 2438
Segment profit g08 282 T0O5 504 304 190 60 2548
Unallocable expenses 288
Operating profit 2,659
Other income, met (refer nate no.

2.14 and 2.9) 485
Share in associate's profit | (loss)

including impairment (11}
Profit before Income taxes 3,143
income tax expense BSY
Net profit 2,486
Depreciation and amaortisation 289

MNon-cash expenses other than
depreciation and amartisation 28
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(Droflars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2017

FS MFG ECS RCL HILIFE Hi-Tech All other segments Total

Revenues 2,765 1,119 2,300 1,673 1,258 TE3 330 10,208
Identifiable operating expenses 1,382 584 1107 BOZ 623 356 210 5104
Allocated axpanses BO7 25% 532 38T 291 177 76 2328
Seament profit 776 276 B61 484 344 190 a4 2775
Unallocalde expenses 255
DOperating profit 2,520
Other income, net 459
Share in associate's profit [ (loss)

including impairment 5]
Profit before Income taxes 2974
Income tax axpense B34
Met profit 2,140
Depreciation and amortisation 254

MNon-cash expenses other than
depraciafion and amartisatian

(Droflars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2016 F& MFG ECS RCL HILIFE Hi-Tech All other segmenis Total
Revenues 2,590 1,047 2,061 1,556 1,23 756 260 9,501
ldentifiable operating expenses 1248 555 944 742 @ 5RS i 156 4 601
Allocated expenses 606 257 505 381 302 185 65 2,301
Segment profit 736 235 612 433 344 200 39 2,500
Unallocable expenses 224
Operating profit 2,375
Cither income, nat 476
Share in associale’s profit | (loss)

Including impairmeant -
Profit before Income taxes 2,851
income tax expense 799
Net profit 2,052
Depreciation and amortisation 222
Mon-cash expenses other than

depraciation and amortisation 2
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2.20.2 Geographic segments

{D:oflars in millions)
Year ended March 31, 2018 North America Europe  India Rest of the World  Total
Revenues B,E6D5 2,598 348 1,382 10,838
ldentifiable operating expenses 3428 1324 1441 8o 5553
Allocated expenses 1,454 586 BE 82 2438
Segment profit 1,682 686 139 441 2948
Unallocable expenses 288
Qperating profit 2,659
Qther income, net (refer note no. 2.14 and 2.3) 4495
Share in associaie's profit [ (boss) including
impakrment (11
Profit before income taxes 3143
income tax expense 657
MNet profit 2,486
Depreciation and amortization 2689

Mon-cash expenses other than depreciation
and amortization 29

{Doflars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2017 North Rest of the

America Europe India World Total
Revenuss 6,320 2,295 325 1,268 10,208
Igentifiable aperating expenses 3424 1.147 149 = 5104
Allocated expenses 1,460 529 66 274 2329
Segment profit 1,638 619 110 408 2775
Unallocable expenses 255
Operating profit 2520
Other income, nat 459
Share in associale’s profit [ (loss) including
impakrment {3)
Profit before Income taxes 2974
income tax expense 834
et profit 2,140
Depreciation and amortization 254
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Naon-cash expenses cther than depreciation
and amortization

[Dallars in millions)

Year ended March 31, 2016 North America Europe  India Rest of the World = Total
Revenues 5957 2,186 245 1,112 8,501
Identifiable operating expenses 25938 1.0680 109 496 4801
Allocated expenses 1.459 534 59 257 2.3
Segment profit 1.562 592 86 358 2,599
Unallocable axpenses 224
Operating profit 2,375
Other incame, net 476
Share in assoclate's profit | (loss) including

impairment =
Profit before income taxes 2,851
Income lax expense 799
Net profit 2,052
Depreciation and amaortizaticon 222
Naon-cash expenses cther than depreciation

and amortizatian 2

2.20.3 Significant clisnts

Mo client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues for the year ended March 21, 2018, 2017

and 20186,

2.21 Litigation

The company is subject to legal procesdings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business.

The company’'s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ullimately concluded

and detarmined, will have a material and adverse effect on the company’s results of operations or financial

condition,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Infosys Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Infosys Limited andsubsidiaries as of
March31, 2017, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March31, 2017. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries as of March31, 2017, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March31, 2017, in
conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“1FRS”).

I KPMG

Bengaluru, India
June 12, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Infosys Limited
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries
(“Infosys Limited” or “Group” ) as of March 31, 2018, the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements®). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the Group
as of March 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended March 31,
2018, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Group's internal control over financia reporting as of March 31,
2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated July 19, 2018,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Group's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis of Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audit included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl Deloitte Haskins & SellsLLP
Bengaluru, India
July 19, 2018

We have served as the Company's auditor since fiscal 2018.
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